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OUR MISSION
To be the leading provider  

of quality water services  

in South Africa.

OUR VALUES
The culture of Magalies Water is guided by 

its values, which are used as anchor-points 

to establish the manner in which the entity 

approaches its activities and relates to its 

stakeholders.

INTEGRITY
We do what we say we’re going to do – ALWAYS!

SERVICE QUALITY
We endeavour to meet customer requirements 

in all that we do

COMPETENCE
We deliver services with a high level of 

professionalism 

ECO-EFFICIENCY
Our practices reflect our care for the natural 

environment

GOOD CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP
We strive for the development of a sustainable 

economy and the wellbeing of our community.

OUR VISION
Magalies Water Board provides water services to Water 

Services Authorities, Water Services Institutions and 

other users that positively impact the quality of life 

and economic growth of communities in our area of 

operation.

CORE STRATEGY
The core strategy of Magalies Water is to meet the 
mandated Section 29 obligations and provide viable 
Section 30 initiatives as and when required per the 
Water Services Act, (Act 108 of 1997). This will be 
achieved through reliable provision of quality and 
affordable potable water to enhance the quality 
of life of communities. Through a commercially 
sustainable business, Magalies Water will contribute 
to the economic development in the service area and 
support the Local Government.

OUTLINE OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS
Establishment of Magalies Water is informed by Section 29 of the 
Water Services Act, 1997 (Act 108 of 1997) which states that the 
primary activity of a Water Board is to provide water services to 
other water services institutions within its service area. Magalies 
Water’s service area covers 42 000km² across the provinces of 
North West, Limpopo and Gauteng, within the major catchments 
of the Crocodile and the Olifants rivers. 

The Minister of Water and Sanitation is the custodian of water 
resources in the country. Magalies Water abstracts water from 
the Department of Water and Sanitation (DWS) dams and that 
water is channelled to Water Treatment Plants. From the Water 
Treatment Plants, the water is then treated and distributed 
through pipelines to Water Service Authorities (WSA) and other 
clients. 

ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE

Our service area is shown below:
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Potable water is provided to the following WSAs:

Water service authorities

Rustenburg Local Municipality, North West Province Modimolle Local Municipality, Limpopo Province 

Moses Kotane Local Municipality, North West Province Bela Bela Local Municipality, Limpopo Province 

Thabazimbi Local Municipality, Limpopo Province City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality, Gauteng Province 

Other major clients include the following:

Other major clients

Bafokeng Rasimone Platinum Mine Rhino Andalusite Mine

Bakubung Minerals SA Ferrochrome (Pty)Ltd

Cullinan Diamond Mine Union Section Joint Venture

Impala Platinum Mine Royal Bafokeng Administration

Northam Platinum Limited Pilanesberg Platinum Mines

Sun City Carousel Casino 

ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE 
CONTINUED

VALUE CHAIN

The following treatment technologies are utilised:

Water treatment plant Treatment technologies

Vaalkop Water Treatment Plant Dissolved air flotation, sedimentation, ozone, rapid gravity sand 
filtration, granular activated carbon, chloramination

Klipdrift Water Treatment Plant Dissolved air flotation, chlorination, rapid gravity sand filtration

Cullinan Water Treatment Plant Dissolved air flotation, chlorination, rapid gravity sand filtration

Wallmannsthal Water Treatment Plant Sedimentation, rapid gravity sand filtration, chlorination

Magalies Water owns and operates the 
following water treatment plants and associated 
pipelines:
Vaalkop Water Treatment Plant: the plant has a design 
capacity of 240ML/day. Raw water is abstracted from the Vaalkop 
Dam in the Crocodile River catchment. Potable water produced 
from this plant is distributed to North West and Limpopo 
Provinces. The length of the network of pipelines from the 
Vaalkop Water Treatment Plant is 475 kilometres. 

Klipdrift Water Treatment Plant: the plant has a design 
capacity of 18ML/day and the water produced from this plant 
is supplied across Limpopo and Gauteng provinces. Raw water 

is abstracted from the Roodeplaat Dam in the Pienaars River 
catchment. The length of the pipeline from the Klipdrift Water 
Treatment Plant is 150 kilometres. 

Cullinan Water Treatment Plant: the plant has a design 
capacity of 16ML/day and supplies water to the Cullinan Diamond 
Mine and the City of Tshwane. Raw water is abstracted from 
the Bronkhorstspruit Dam in the Pienaars River catchment. The 
length of the pipeline from the Klipdrift Water Treatment Plant is 
150 kilometres.

Wallmannsthal Water Treatment Plant: the plant has a design 
capacity of 12ML/day and supplies water to the City of Tshwane 
and some individual customers. Raw water is abstracted from the 
Roodeplaat Dam in the Pienaars River catchment. The length of the 
pipeline from the Klipdrift Water Treatment Plant is 36 kilometres.

The value chain of Magalies Water is contextualised through depiction of the operational water core process and support processes. 
Transformation processes are also depicted wherein raw water is transformed into potable. The municipal processes are also depicted to 
show the outcomes and impacts of our activities. This value chain thus support the “source to tap” vision as there is delivery of services 
across the entire water value chain. Magalies Water is legislated to provide bulk potable water. There is an undertaking to work very closely 
with, and support the Municipalities in order to ensure efficient and effective water service delivery. The value chain is shown below: 

Raw Water 
abstraction

Water 
purification

Potable 
water

Potable 
water 

distribution

Municipal  
supply

Operational 
core

Inputs Process Outputs Outcomes 
and impacts

The above value chain is supported by the following activities:

Human Resources

Support  
services

Finance and Supply Chain Management

Information and Communications Technology

Assets Maintenance and Infrastructure Expansion

Communications and Stakeholder Engagement
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FOREWORD 
BY THE 
SHAREHOLDER

DEAR STAKEHOLDERS,
The Annual Report of Magalies Water is presented at a point 
when there is a focused drive to revolutionise the water and 
sanitation sector in order to fasten the pace of delivery of services 
to the people of South Africa. Water services delivery is a critical 
socio-economic imperative hence an urgent need for us to 
address the challenges faced by our Communities. Addressing 
the challenges of water services delivery does not only require 
interventions by the National Government, but also requires 
dialogue by those at the apex of business corporations, activists 
within the community, civil movements, and intellectuals within 
the academia, among others. This will enable achievement of 
democratic values of “human dignity, equality, advancement of 
human rights and freedoms” as enshrined in the Constitution of 
the Republic of South Africa. 

REFORMS IN THE WATER SECTOR
The service delivery imperative is driven largely by the National 
Water Resources Strategy 2, and the National Development Plan 
(NDP) to address the tripartite challenges of inequality, poverty 
and unemployment. This therefore gave an impetus for the 
institutional architecture that is politically driven to ensure that 
service delivery is optimised to have the desired social impact. 

Whilst Institutional models in most developing countries have 
stabilised, there is an on-going refinement of institutional models 
in emerging economies tailored to the unique circumstances of 
various countries. Most of the countries in Africa are under- going 
some form of water sector reforms to improve service delivery. 
In South Africa, the DWS is leading a process of Institutional 
Reforms and Realignment (IRR), which is intended to transform 
Water Boards into Regional Water Utilities (RWUs). These RWUs 

will operate across municipal boundaries and will manage a range 
of water resources and bulk water and wastewater infrastructure, 
with the specific purpose of:
• leveraging regional water schemes more effectively to supply 

scarce water over vast distances
• reducing the number of institutions requiring regulation by the 

national DWS
• streamlining management and governance structure to improve 

efficiency
• creating institutions with critical mass that will be more 

resilient to local changes in water supply issues and temporary 
fluctuations in water supply volumes

• establishing institutions that are better placed to undertake 
bulk water treatment, bulk waste water treatment and retail 
operations

Magalies Water is one of the entities that will play a significant 
role in the achievement of these sector reforms in advancement of 
service delivery.

INSTITUTIONAL REGULATION AND 
LEGISLATIVE REVIEW
The importance of regulation in the water services sector is now 
widely accepted, locally and internationally as constituting best 
practise. By the same token, establishment of an independent 
regulator is often regarded as an important component in terms of 
broader sector reform. It is also a precursor and often a necessary 
requirement for further investment in the water sector both 
from the public and private sectors. The DWS has established a 
Regulation function that would enable regulation across the water 
value chain, from “source to source”. Regulation would include 
social, infrastructure and economic aspects of the value chain.

The DWS has also embarked on a process of combining the 
existing Water Services Act and the National Water Act. This 
combination will enable formation and legislative definition of the 
RWUs, including a reform of water sector institutional architecture 
to enable effective delivery of services and equity in allocation 
of water use, among others. The DWS has also taken over the 
sanitation function and a process has also been initiated to draft 
a Sanitation policy which aims to bring about equity in service 
provision. Magalies Water has geared itself to be a key player in 
that institutional landscape. 

NATURAL RESOURCES
Water as a resource is not abundantly available, and that can 
be a serious limitation to economic growth, contributing to 
poverty, and causing environmental degradation. The same 
drivers that increase water demand, such as population growth 
and industrialisation also lead to greater amounts of wastewater 
discharge. Without proper treatment, this wastewater discharge 
can create serious water quality problems. 

Climate change affects the hydrological cycle leading to extreme 
weather conditions and other various impacts. The country was 
hit by a severe drought during the financial year and Magalies 
Water implemented drought relief initiatives in its service area. 
This is also an indication that there is capability within Magalies 
Water to counter adverse events related to natural resources. 

DIRECTIVES TO MAGALIES WATER
I have during the financial year, directed Magalies Water to 
intervene on an emergency basis in areas where there was a need 
to address poor quality of water and sanitation services in the 
Madibeng Local Municipality. A directive was also provided to 
upgrade bulk water supply systems and associated infrastructure 

in Majakaneng, which is also part of the Madibeng Local 
Municipality. Significant progress was made in the implementation 
of both directives. Simillar interventions were made in the service 
area with resounding success. 

ACCESS TO SERVICES
Water is one of the most critical social, economic and political 
drivers not only in the South African context, globally also and 
it will continue to be such a driver the next centuries. There are 
however, serious infrastructural, operational and financial related 
challenges facing the water sector that must be addressed to 
ensure the long term water security. South Africa has already 
reached the 95% coverage in terms of access to water services. 

Post the advent of democracy, there are still millions of people 
without access to safe, affordable and sustainable water and 
sanitation services, thus the remaining 5% must be reached 
in terms of service coverage. Magalies Water has been at the 
forefront of ensuring access of water to Communities within its 
service area through its capital expansions drive.

APPRECIATION
I would like to convey my sincere gratitude to the Board, Executive 
Management and the entire Staff of Magalies Water in their 
unwavering endeavors of ensuring success of the water sector.

Ms N Mokonyane
Minister of Water and Sanitation
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STATEMENT 
OF THE 
CHAIRPERSON

DEAR STAKEHOLDERS,
Presentation of the 2015/16 annual report is against the backdrop 
of the Minister’s intent to revolutionise the water sector. This 
means that strategic actions of institutions of the calibre of 
Magalies Water must translate into the right outcomes and 
impacts at the level of communities we serve so that water 
services delivery is accelerated. Strategic performance of Magalies 
Water can thus be measured on the basis of achievement of its 
Legislated mandate as it is enshrined in the Water Services Act. 

ALIGNMENT TO THE NATIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN
Performance of Magalies Water for the 2015/16 financial year is 
primarily aligned to the thematic areas of the NDP being economy 
and unemployment, economic infrastructure including building 
a capable and developmental state. This shows our resolve as an 
entity to help the country move forward in addressing the triple 
challenges of poverty, unemployment and inequalities by 2030. 

Magalies Water also supports the economic growth agenda and 
job creation through investments in infrastructure. Some of our 
initiatives during the financial year were directed towards using 
the infrastructure investments spending as a catalyst to drive job 
creation. Contribution towards the social transformation agenda 
of advancement of Black Economic Empowerment was also 
made through appointment of Black-owned companies in the 
infrastructure expansion projects.

SOCIO-ECONOMIC FACTORS 
The social environment is at the epicentre of our operations 
as water services delivery is a social imperative. Access to 
water services remains a strategic challenge for Water Services 

Institutions and Magalies Water is no exception. This is due to 
resources that are being depleted, growing populations and 
changing spatial patterns due to concentration of people in towns 
and cities. The Provinces where Magalies Water operates, being 
Limpopo and North West boasts low levels of access and low 
levels of income per household. Those two factors have got an 
impact on affordability levels and the ability of customers to pay 
for water services. We have thus remained resolute and true to 
achievement of our mandate of quality water services delivery at 
an affordable tariff. 

The economic environment has got huge implications on 
operations of Magalies Water due to the fiscal policies of 
Government. The fiscal policy framework allows for sustainable 
financing of state owned entities. This has provided an 
opportunity for Magalies Water to be funded on the social 
components of the infrastructure expansions. We will continue 
as part of our Stakeholder engagement efforts, to engage 
Government on further funding of our capital expansion projects 
to the extent that communities on the ground will benefit from 
the expanded water infrastructure networks.

The short to medium term fiscal outlook is that the South African 
economic growth will remain sluggish. In this instance, growth in 
the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is the most crucial benchmark 
for Magalies Water as far as growth in water sales volumes are 
concerned. Our sales volumes growth has been constrained for 
the past few years, however we are confident that there will be 
an upswing in sales volumes growth in the next financial year 
as the last component of the Vaalkop upgrades is completed. 
Commissioning of this upgrade will take place in the first quarter 
of the 2016/17 financial year.

SUPPORT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT
In carrying out our mandate of water services delivery, various 
support activities were provided to the Municipalities. The 
Municipal Services Strategic Assessments (MuSSA) were 
carried out and some Municipalities as “highly vulnerable” 
and “extremely vulnerable” in terms of water services 
delivery. Magalies Water therefore supported the Madibeng 
Local Municipality by augmentation of water services using 
groundwater in Jericho, Letlhabile and Maboloka. Restoration 
of water services was also done in Majakaneng and all those 
activities were carried out in implementation of a Ministerial 
Directive that was issued to that effect. Support was also provided 
to Moretele and Moses Kotane Local Municipalities.

Support was also provided to the Kgetleng Rivier and Modimolle 
Local Municipalities as measures to alleviate the two Municipalities 
from water shortages as a result of the drought. Magalies Water 
will as part of its strategic trajectory, enhance its secondary 
business abilities to be able support Municipalities in the area 
of supply. 

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
We recognise that perceptions of our Stakeholders may have a 
material impact on the reputation of Magalies Water. Stakeholders 
may also have powers and influence over the decision making 
processes within Magalies Water hence as a Board, we embarked 
on engagement with our Stakeholders during the financial year. 
Classification of Stakeholders was done to establish engagement 
mechanisms into those who are Regulators, those who provide 
services to Magalies Water and those who Magalies Water 
provides services to. We will endeavour to continue engagement 
with Stakeholders to keep them satisfied and informed at all times 
in order to minimise the reputational impacts on Magalies Water. 
Material issues of engagement with Stakeholders are included in 
the contents of this report. 

LEGISLATIVE FACTORS
The Minister of Water and Sanitation has proposed a number 
of policies having an impact on the future of the Water Sector 
Institutions. Key among those policy proposals is the institutional 
arrangements and Governance which gave motive for sector 
IRR. The IRR process therefore seeks to transform Water Boards 
into RWUs, with disestablishment of other Water Boards and 
amalgamation of the supply area of other Water Boards.

We also acknowledge that there is currently no coherent 
economic regulation across the water value chain and 
therefore support the scope of economic regulation that would 
encompass aspects such as tariffs and their structures, support 
of Government policy and broader social, environmental and 
economic imperatives. 

APPRECIATION
I would like to convey my heartfelt appreciation to:
• Honourable Deputy Minister, Ms P Tshwete and the Honourable 

Minister, Ms N Mokonyane for their Sector Leadership
• Auditor-General and the Parliamentary Portfolio Committee 

on water and Sanitation for helping the Water Sector to be 
accountable

• Mayors, Councillors and Officials of the Rustenburg, 
Thabazimbi, Modimolle, Bela Bela, Kgetleng Rivier, Madibeng, 
Moretele, Moses Kotane and Lephalale Local Municipalities 
including the City of Tshwane, Bojanala District Municipality, 
Bakgatla ba Kgafela Tribal Authority and the Royal Bafokeng 
Administration for their strategic partnerships in service delivery

• Fellow Members of the Board for their continued support
• The Director General and the staff of the DWS for their 

engagements
• Executive Management and the entire Staff of Magalies Water 

for their efforts and commitment to the organisation 

Adv MM Petlane
Chairperson of the Board
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STATEMENT  
OF THE  
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

DEAR STAKEHOLDERS,
On behalf of the Executive collective of Magalies Water, I thus 
present the Annual Report for the 2015/16 financial year. The 
Annual Report closes the strategic management loop for the 
year as it details performance of Magalies Water against the set 
predetermined objectives and targets. Our mandate is derived 
from the Water Services Act and our performance can only be 
measured against that mandate.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW 
A robust financial performance is reported despite a difficult 
internal environment of sales volumes constraints. This has led to 
company-wide cost containment measures through curtailment of 
some operational projects to achieve cost reductions in mitigation 
of rising costs outstripping increases in revenue. An operating profit 
of R34 million is reported indicating that the organisation was able 
to generate profits from its own operations. Finance income of 
R16 million was earned which is a decrease from R26 million as it 
was earned from a lower capital base as compared to the previous 
financial year. A net profit of R51 million is reported which is a 
reduction from R61 million of the previous financial year. 

A strong balance sheet is boasted as investments were made in 
acquisition of income producing assets as R395 million was spent 
in this regard. This infrastructure will be commissioned in the 
2016/17 financial year to induce sales volumes performance. 

A positive net working capital of R135 million is reported which 
is a reflection of effective working capital management and that 
Magalies Water is in a position to meet its short term obligations. 
Net working capital movements are characterised by a decrease 
in investments and debtors. A portion of investments were retired 
to finance capital expansion projects and collections were made 
from Debtors, particularly the amount that was owed by the DWS. 

The cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the financial year is 
R36 million and was a substantial increase compared to the prior 
financial year. Positive cash was generated from operations, when 
there was a cash outflow of R331 million from investing activities 
due to acquisition of income producing assets. Infrastructure 
Grants were also received from the National Government to 
implement capital expansions. Operationally, the cash position 
of Magalies Water is sound, although scarcity of resources was a 
constraint as the entire planned capital expansion programme was 
not implemented during the financial year. Resources mobilisation 
will be made in the future to address infrastructure funding gap 
so that the infrastructure masterplan can be fully implemented. 

CHALLENGES
The quality of our water resources is deteriorating due to 
elevated nutrients concentration in our catchments. This is not 
just a challenge in our catchments but a national challenge 
and the responses of Magalies Water was optimisation of the 
treatment processes and chemicals utilisation. Notwithstanding 
the challenges related to poor quality of raw water, the potable 
water produced complied with the quality potable water drinking 
standards of SANS 241:2011. 

Magalies Water does not have constraints in terms of water 
demand, however constraints were internal in terms of water 
treatment and pumping capacity. Causes of supply constraints 
were power failures, reduced flow of water due to poor raw water 
quality and inefficiencies as a result of emergency breakdowns. All 
the variables were taken into account in the planning of 2016/17 
financial year in relation to water sales volumes. It is expected 
that performance in that regard will significantly improve as the 
last components of the Vaalkop upgrades are completed in the 
medium term.

CONTRIBUTION TO SOCIAL 
TRANSFORMATION
Magalies Water contributed to the social transformation goals 
of Government through deliberate appointment of black-owned 
companies in our capital expenditure. Black-owned companies 
were awarded 43% of the R395 million that was spent on capital 
expenditure. This was done as an advancement of inherent 
priciples of Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment (B-BBEE). 
Small, medium and micro enterprises were awarded 29% of the 
operational expenditure.

BUSINESS GROWTH AND OPPORTUNITIES
A due diligence study was conducted during the financial year 
to assess the opportunities for growth in the market within 
which Magalies Water operates. An internal assessment was also 
conducted to establish if internal capabilities and the current 
operating model will enable Magalies Water to take advantage 
of such growth. Results of those studies indicated that there are 
opportunities for growth and a case for the expanded service 
boundary. 

AUDIT MATTERS
The Office of the Auditor General expressed a financially 
unqualified audit outcome on the financial statements of Magalies 
Water. Additional matters were however raised in the Audit 
report without modifying the audit opinion and an action plan to 
address those matters has been put in place for execution during 
the 2016/17 financial year.

APPRECIATION
I would like to express my sincere appreciation to:
• Honourable Minister of Water and Sanitation, the Honourable 

Deputy Minister and Chairperson of the Portfolio Committee 
for their enriching engagements 

• Director-General and the Colleagues at the DWS
• Water Services Authorities in our area of operation for their 

continued support of our efforts to deliver on our mandate;
• The Board for effective collective leadership of the organisation
• The employees of Magalies Water whose effort sustain the 

performance of the organisation

 

LC Mohalaba
Chief Executive (Acting)



12 13Annual Report 2015/16 Magalies Water 

FUNCTIONING OF THE BOARD
The controlling structure of Magalies Water is the Board and this is 
in alignment to the legislative and good governance requirements. 
Members of the Board are appointed by the Honourable Minister 
in terms of the Water Services Act (Act 108 of 1997). The term of 
office of the Board is for a period not exceeding four years. The 
Board is made up of 13 non-executive Board members and one 
executive member. The Board was appointed on 1 May 2014 and 
the term of office will expire on 30 April 2018.

The mandate of the Board is outlined in the adopted Board 
Charter which defines the responsibilities of the Board as follows:
• Ensuring that the objectives of the Shareholder are achieved
• Contribute to and adopt the business plan
• Strive to achieve financial viability of the organisation
• Ensure that there is an effective risk management system
• Ensure that the Annual Financial Statements that fairly 

represent the affairs of the organisation are prepared for each 
financial year

• To be responsive to perceptions that affect the reputation of 
the organisation

• Ensure that the organisation is and is seen to be a responsible 
organisation

The Board is of the opinion that it has adhered to the Board 
Charter during the year under review. The Board also considered 
and approved the strategy presented by the Chief Executive.

Board committees and chairpersons
The effectiveness and efficiency of the Board is enhanced by the 
following Board Committees:
• Capital Investments Committee: Mr FP Vilakazi
• Finance Committee: Mr DR Sibanda
• Human Resources and Remuneration Committee:  

Ms P Nkwinika
• Audit Committee: Ms TF Zondi
• Risk Committee: Ms F Saloojee

Attendance of the Board meetings during the financial year was 
as follows:

Member Attendance

Adv MM Petlane 8 out of 9

PN Nkwinika 9 out of 9

MA Hlahla 9 out of 9

DR Sibanda 7 out of 9

TF Zondi 9 out of 9

TD Monewe 9 out of 9

TT Mohapi 9 out of 9

F Saloojee 6 out of 9

FP Villakazi 9 out of 9

N Mufamadi 9 out of 9

Kgosi SV Suping 9 out of 9

MS Lebeko-Ratlhagane 9 out of 9

N Maepa 5 out of 9

SHAREHOLDERS COMPACT
Magalies Water has concluded a Shareholders Compact with the 
Executive Authority for the year under review as required by the 
Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999). This Compact 
sets out the performance parameters for Magalies Water and was 
approved by the Executive Authority. Quarterly Reports on the 
performance of the organisation against predetermined objectives 
and performance parameters were submitted to the DWS during 
the period under review.

CAPITAL INVESTMENTS COMMITTEE
The roles and responsibilities of the Committee are among others, 
the following:
• Recommend approval of capital expenditure programme to be 

undertaken by Magalies Water
• Recommend to the Board, the approval of additional 

infrastructure expansion programme
• Bring to the attention of the Board any matter that warrants 

Board’s attention relating to the water infrastructure
• Ensure that the primary activity of Magalies Water is achieved 

in terms of Section 29 of the Water Services Act, 1997 (Act 108 
of 1997)

G
O
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• approval and review of the Audit Charter
• approval and review of the internal audit budget and that the 

function is adequately resourced 
• review the process on the appointment, performance 

assessment and dismissal of the Chief Audit Executive
• ensure that the Internal Audit function is subjected to an 

independent quality review to determine that the function 
remains effective as and when the Committee deems 
appropriate

Attendance of the Audit Committee meetings during the financial 
year was as follows:

Member Attendance

TF Zondi 5 out of 5

M Mufamadi 5 out of 5

N Maepa 5 out of 5

N Baloyi* 3 out of 5

S Mamotheti* 4 out of 5

M Ramataboe* 4 out of 5

PN Nkwinika# 1 out of 1

Adv MM Petlane# 1 out of 1

# Not a Committee member but attended the meetings as per Directive of the Board
* External Audit Committee Members

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE
The roles and responsibilities of the Committee are among others, 
the following:
• Oversee implementation of remuneration policies that will 

promote the achievement of strategic objectives and encourage 
individual performance

• Ensure that appropriate processes are in place for recruitment, 
training and succession planning

• Review and recommend the terms and conditions for 
Executive Committee service agreements, including review of 
performance and rewards

• Regularly review human resource management policies relevant 
to the organisation

Attendance of the Human Resources and Remuneration 
Committee meetings during the financial year was as follows:

Attendance of the Capital Investments Committee meetings 
during the financial year was as follows:

Member Attendance

FP Vilakazi 7 out of 7

MA Hlahla 7 out of 7

TT Mohapi 7 out of 7

F Saloojee 6 out of 7

MS Lebeko-Ratlhagane 5 out of 7

PN Nkwinika# 5 out of 5

Adv MM Petlane# 1 out of 1
# Not a Committee member but attended the meetings as per Directive of the Board

FINANCE COMMITTEE
The roles and responsibilities of the Committee are among others, 
the following:
• Recommend the approval of financial information to the Board
• Recommend approval of the annual budget and its adjustments 

to the Board
• Assessment of the financial reports as per the corporate and 

annual performance plan of Magalies Water
• Review of the quarterly financial reports as per the corporate 

and annual performance plan of Magalies Water
• Advise on the investments, loan requirements and bank 

facilities of the entity
• Recommend the approval of water tariffs for each financial year 

to the Board

Attendance of the Finance Committee meetings during the 
financial year was as follows:

Member Attendance

DR Sibanda 4 out of 4

FP Vilakazi 4 out of 4

MA Hlahla 4 out of 4

TT Mohapi 4 out of 4

TD Monewe 4 out of 4

PN Nkwinika# 3 out of 3
# Not a Committee member but attended the meetings as per Directive of the Board

Member Attendance

PN Nkwinika 5 out of 5

DR Sibanda 5 out of 5

TD Monewe 5 out of 5

F Saloojee 4 out of 5

Kgosi SV Suping 4 out of 5

Adv MM Petlane# 1 out of 1

# Not a Committee member but attended the meetings as per Directive of the Board

INTERNAL AUDIT
Internal Audit conducts its work through implementation of a 
three year rolling internal audit plan to provide assurance on 
the effectiveness of internal controls.  The function is currently 
outsourced and administratively reports to the Chief Executive 
and functionally to the Audit Committee.  Internal Audit has 
unrestricted access to Board, Audit Committee, employees of 
Magalies Water including manual and electronic records.  

The status on internal audit within Magalies Water is sufficient 
to permit objectivity and to assure accomplishment of its 
responsibilities.  Assurance is provided through performance of 
the following functions:
• evaluation of governance processes of the organisation 
• objective assessment of effectiveness of risk management and 

the internal control framework
• systematic analysis and evaluation of business processes and 

associated controls
• provision of source of information as appropriate regarding 

instances of fraud, corruption, unethical behaviour and 
irregularities

EXTERNAL AUDIT
The Auditor-General of South Africa performs the external audit 
function for Magalies Water with the Audit Committee overseeing 
the external audit processes. The responsibility of the Auditor-
General is to express an opinion on whether the Annual Financial 
Statements, fairly present in all material respects, the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with 
provisions of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act 1 
of 1999). This is performed through collection of appropriate 
evidence to obtain reasonable assurance that the amounts 
disclosed are free from any material misstatements.

RISK COMMITTEE
The Committee fulfils an independent oversight role in 
management of key risks facing the organisation through 
implementation of the strategic risk management plan. The roles 
of the Committee are as follows:
• Assist the Board in formulating a Risk Policy and Framework 

which facilitates implementation of a robust Strategic Risk 
Management Plan

• Make recommendations to the Board concerning risk tolerance 
levels and mitigation thereof

• Provide assurance to the Board on effectiveness of a risk 
management process

• Provide assurance that controls are in place and effective in 
addressing Information Technology risks

Attendance of the Risk Committee meetings during the financial 
year was as follows:

Member Attendance

F Saloojee 3 out of 3

TF Zondi 3 out of 3

N Mufamadi 3 out of 3

Kgosi SV Suping 3 out of 3

MS Lebeko-Ratlhagane 3 out of 3

PN Nkwinika# 1 out of 1

Adv MM Petlane# 1 out of 1
# Not a Committee member but attended the meetings as per Directive of the Board

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The roles and responsibilities of the Committee are set out 
in the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act 1 of 
1999) and Treasury Regulation 27.1. The Committee plays an 
independent role in Corporate Governance, Annual Reporting 
and management of internal controls. The Committee is also 
accountable to the Board and reports on its evaluation of 
financial statements and effectiveness of internal controls in the 
Annual Report. Further, the roles of the Committee comprise the 
following: 
• approval of a rolling three year internal audit plan
• review the extent of control testing and understand the degree 

to which it can be relied on to detect fraud
• review structure of the internal audit function 

GOVERNANCE 
CONTINUED
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Adv MM Petlane 
(Chairperson)

Advocate Petlane served in 
various leadership positions 
across public, academic and 
private sector entities. He 
also served as a Board 
Member before ultimately 
being appointed a 
Chairperson of the Board of 
Rand Water.

Ms TF Zondi

Ms Zondi has a vast 
experience in SCM in both 
the private and public sector 
institutions. She has a wealth 
of knowledge in corporate 
governance.

Ms PN Nkwinika 
(Deputy-Chairperson)

Ms Nkwinika has a legal 
background as she served in 
various positions within the 
Justice Department. Her 
experience includes being a 
legal advisor and a Head of 
Department in Government. 
She possesses vast experience 
in the public sector.

Mr TT Mohapi

Mr Mohapi is an entrepreneur 
who also served in the Small 
Business Chamber and on the 
Tender Board of the Limpopo 
Province. He is an educator 
by profession and has a vast 
experience in local 
government. He was a Mayor 
of Modimolle Local 
Municipality. 

Mr DR Sibanda

Mr Sibanda is experienced in 
the fields of managerial and 
financial accounting with 
exposure in breweries, 
manufacturing, medical 
schemes and the public 
sector. 

Ms F Saloojee

Ms Saloojee is a former 
Councillor of Rustenburg 
Local Municipality and served 
on the Board of Rand Water. 
She brings a wealth of 
experience in local 
government and also served 
in various leadership roles 
within the private sector. 

Mr FP Vilakazi

Mr Vilakazi has extensive 
experience in the public 
sector. He formerly served as 
a Member of the Executive 
Committee in the North West 
Province. He was a special 
advisor to the Minister of 
Water and Environmental 
Affairs.

Ms M Hlahla

Ms Hlahla is a town planner 
by profession and has 
extensive experience in 
transportation planning, 
town planning and property 
management. She has 
corporate governance 
experience through 
involvement in various boards 
of public sector entities.

Ms N Mufamadi

Ms Mufamadi has experience 
in accounting, auditing and 
forensic auditing. She also 
holds other leadership 
positions within the private 
and the public sector 
corporations.

Ms S Lebeko-Ratlhagane

Ms Lebeko-Ratlhagane is a 
pharmacist by profession and 
has vast experience in the 
local government and the 
water sector. She was a 
Mayor of the Ramotshere 
Moiloa Local Municipality and 
also a Board Chairperson of 
Botshelo Water.

Ms TD Monewe

Ms Monewe is an educator 
by profession and was a 
Member of the Mayoral 
Committee responsible for 
Water and Sanitation in the 
Bojanala District Municipality. 

Kgosi SV Suping

Kgosi Suping is a Chief of the 
Bahurutshe Tribe in the 
village of Supingstad. He was 
a Board Member of Botshelo 
Water and also served in the 
National House of Traditional 
Leaders.

Mr NA Maepa

Mr Maepa has extensive 
experience in internal and 
external auditing, risk and 
financial management. 
He was an Independent Audit 
Committee Member of 
Botshelo Water and is 
currently a Chief Financial 
Officer of Cross Border Roads 
Transport Agency.

GOVERNANCE 
CONTINUED
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Risk management is an integral part of our improved 
performance, growth and sustainable value creation. Magalies 
Water acknowledges that a Strategic Risk Management Plan is a 
fundamental tool used to reduce uncertainty in our operations. 
Through the Enterprise Wide Risk Management process, every 
key risk in each part of the organisation is included in a structured 
and systematic manner such that all risk management efforts are 
focused on supporting Magalies Water’s objectives. Risks, strategy 
and opportunities are dynamic and ought not to be considered 
and managed in isolation as integration of risk management into 
the decision making, execution and monitoring mechanisms of 
the organisation is crucial for minimisation of negative outcomes. 

The Board is accountable for Magalies Water overall governance 
of risk and this is advocated by its high level responsibilities that 
include setting appropriate risk management tone, approving risk 
management policies and other associated strategies. 

Management has integrated risk management within its functions 
through establishment of a Risk Management Committee (RMC).  
The RMC comprise executive and senior management, and meet 
on a quarterly basis mainly to follow up on risk mitigation plans to 
address the residual risk exposure.  Outputs of RMC discussions 
are reported to the Risk Committee of the Board.

The following strategic risks were managed by the Board during 
the financial year:

Ms Nolubabalo Sondlo 
CA(SA)
Acting General Manager: 
Finance

Academic qualifications: 
BCom Hons (CTA)

Mr Sandile Mkhize
Chief Operating Officer

Academic qualifications: 
Bsc, BTech, MTech, Diploma 
in Advanced Project 
Management, Management 
Advancement Programme, 
MBA

Ms Tsakane Radebe
General Manager: Project 
Management Unit

Academic qualifications: 
National Diploma: Mechanical 
Engineering

BTech: Mechanical Engineering

Project Management 
Professional

Certified Associate in Project 
Management

Mr Charles Mohalaba
Acting Chief Executive

Academic qualifications: 
LLB, Admitted Attorney of the 
High Court of South Africa

Ms Lerato Morake
Acting General Manager: 
Water Services

Academic qualifications: 
BSc Ed: Chemistry and Biology

Applied Science Hons: Water 
Utilisation

MBL

Mr Mahlomola Mehlo
General Manager: 
Engineering Services

Academic qualifications: 
BTech: Project Management, 
MTech: Civil Engineering

Mr Johnny Ndala
Acting General Manager: 
Corporate Services

Academic qualifications: 
Postgraduate Diploma in 
Public Management, 
Presidential Strategic 
Leadership Development 
Programme, Advanced 
Management Development 
Programme

RISK 
MANAGEMENT

GOVERNANCE 
CONTINUED
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Link to primary strategic 
objective Risk name Risk description

Mitigating actions 
implemented during the year

To provide sustainable 
water services to bulk 
customers

1. Bulk water 
infrastructure 
constraints

Current Infrastructure 
not meeting current 
demand. 

• integrated planning with Municipalities

• implementation of the assets maintenance 
plan

• infrastructure condition assessment concluded 
for all the water treatment plants

To develop business 
efficiency and effectiveness

2.  Tariff structure Tariff structure that 
does not support 
sustainable financial 
returns

• monthly and quarterly financial performance 
monitoring

• implementation of a tariff methodology

• consultation with customers, national treasury 
and SALGA on tariff increases

To  manage financial risks 3. Debtors collection Not collecting debtors 
due effectively

• ongoing engagements with the non-paying 
customers

• reporting in terms of the Municipal Finance 
Management Act to the National Treasury

• restriction of supply

Transversal 4. Reputation Erosion of reputation • development of a stakeholder engagement 
plan

• stakeholder engagement at the managerial 
and Board level

To improve the 
competency levels of staff 
and maintain staff 
retention
To ensure business growth

5. Performance 
management

Incomplete roll-out 
Performance 
management system

• implementation of a performance 
management system up to Peromnes level 14

To efficiently and 
effectively conduct S30 
business

6. Section 30 portfolio Unsustainable Section 
30 business portfolio

• ongoing implementation of a Section 30 
blueprint 

To improve the 
competency levels of staff 
and maintain staff 
retention

7. Skills (Knowledge, 
Competence & 
Attitude)

 Inadequate systems to 
attract, develop and 
retain critical skills

• implementation of training plans for 
employees to Peromnes level 14

To develop business 
efficiency and effectiveness

8. ICT Governance Lack of appropriate 
governance processes, 
structures and 
mechanisms to ensure 
optimum utilisation of 
ICT Systems.

• development and implementation of ICT 
charter and governance frameworks

Link to primary strategic 
objective Risk name Risk description

Mitigating actions 
implemented during the year

To provide sustainable 
water services to bulk 
customers
 To meet bulk supply 
agreement requirements
To provide quality potable 
water

9. Water resources Poor quality and 
inadequate quantity of 
raw water

• monitoring of dam levels and resource quality 
on a frequent basis

• engagements with the DWS on water quality 
concerns

• monitoring of raw water abstraction levels 

To Provide a safe and 
healthy working 
environment

10. Health and safety Unsafe/unhealthy 
working environment 
(injuries, disease or 
Death)

• implementation of compliance based training 

• gap analysis and findings closure for OHSAS 
18001 certification at the Vaalkop WTP

To develop business 
efficiency and effectiveness

11. Legal and 
compliance

Legal non-compliance • follow up on compliance matters raised by the 
Auditor-General

• updates on new Legislation, in this instance 
the new water and sanitation bill

To contribute towards 
Governments’ 
transformation and 
empowerment trajectory

12. Transformation 
Agenda

Inadequate 
implementation of 
transformation and 
empowerment plans

• implementation of Corporate Social 
Investment programmes

• empowerment of Small Medium and Micro 
Enterprises through procurement on 
operational expenditure

• empowerment of Black owned companies 
through procurement on the capital expansion 
programmes

To ensure business growth 13. Infrastructure 
expansion

Infrastructure 
investment to meet 
delivery mandate and 
growth plan
Ability to deliver 
projects on time and 
within budget 
 

• ongoing initiative to align the infrastructure 
masterplan of Magalies Water to Integrated 
Development Plans of Municipalities

• implementation of capital expansion projects

To provide sustainable 
water services to bulk 
customers

14.  Servitudes 
encroachment

Encroachment of 
servitudes

• awareness of servitudes encroachment 
workshop conducted 

• frequent pipeline inspections

RISK MANAGEMENT 
CONTINUED
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At the end of the financial year, the risk profile was as follows: 

Risk level Number Risk name

High 4 risks Risk 1:  Bulk water infrastructure 
constraints

Risk 4:  Reputation
Risk 9:  Water resources
Risk 13:  Infrastructure expansion

Moderate 7 risks Risk 2:  Tariff structure
Risk 3:  Debtors collection
Risk 5: Performance management
Risk 6:  Section 30 portfolio
Risk 10:  Health and safety
Risk 11:  Legal and compliance
Risk 14:  Servitudes encroachment

Low 3 risks Risk 7:  Skills
Risk 8:  ICT governance
Risk 12:  Transformation agenda

BUSINESS CONTINUITY MANAGEMENT
Magalies Water is committed to ensuring the continuity of 
its business operations and has adopted Business Continuity 
Management (BCM) best practices during the financial year under 
review. Components of the BCM are a policy, impact assessment, 
continuity plan, testing and a disaster recovery plan. BCM 
practises will enable Magalies Water to be more resilient and to 
effectively recover its operations with minimum disruption in the 
event of disaster.

FRAUD PREVENTION PLAN
Magalies Water has continued with a risk management approach 
in the prevention, detection and investigation of suspected 
fraudulent activities. This approach is embedded into the business 
processes, management practices, internal controls and related 
activities. Activities were carried out during the financial year to 
implement the following elements of the Fraud Prevention Plan:

Whistle blowing
The fraud hotline of Magalies Water is managed by an external 
service provider to facilitate, administer and report all the 
suspected cases of fraud and corruption.  Reported cases are 
received by the Risk Manager and during the 2016/17 financial 
year, only 1 case was reported.  Investigations were performed 
on the case reported in accordance to the whistle blowing 
mechanisms.  

Promotion of ethical culture
Ethical culture is promoted within Magalies Water through 
management of conflict of interests by ensuring that employees, 
management and the Board members declare their interests. 
This is also to ensure that personal interests do not interfere 
with the objectivity of individuals in performance of their tasks 
for the organisation. Annual declarations for the 2015/16 
financial year were performed and there was a satisfactory 
declaration and submission. Fraud prevention workshops were 
also held throughout the entire organisation and attendance was 
satisfactory

Materiality and significance framework
Magalies Water operates within a Materiality and Significance 
Framework which is within the ambits of its Risk Management 
Plan. Materiality is defined as the level of value at which a user 
of financial information would change a decision based upon 
such financial information. An item is considered material if its 
value exceeds 5% of turnover and total expenditure, or 2% 
of total assets. Significance is defined as the condition that a 
specific item or trend may adversely impact on the evaluation of 
the performance delivery by a key stakeholder. There were no 
deviations to the Materiality and Significance Framework during 
the 2015/16 financial year.

RISK MANAGEMENT 
CONTINUED
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Stakeholder engagement is an integral part of Corporate 
Governance and Magalies Water appreciates that Stakeholder 
perception can affect its reputation. Magalies Water manages 
Stakeholder perceptions and legitimate interests at all times 
to enhance and protect its corporate image. A structured plan 
between Magalies Water and its stakeholders was therefore 
crafted to manage all the material issues on Stakeholder 
engagement as the Board has got a responsibility to proactively 
manage and set a tone for stakeholder engagement.

Further, a number of stakeholder value propositions that are 
aligned to the identified stakeholder groupings were crafted 
to elevate Magalies Water’s brand and communicate its vision, 
mission and strategic direction. 

The Stakeholder value propositions are presented below:

Stakeholder grouping Value propositions

Stakeholders who are 
regulators

• Compliance with Legislation and 
water Policy

• Input to the Shareholder on 
appropriate bulk water and 
sanitation supply policies

Stakeholder whom 
Magalies Water provides 
services to

• Quality water that meet customer 
expectations at an affordable price

• Reliability of water supply

Stakeholders who provide 
services to Magalies 
Water

• Professional competence
• Sound business practises including 

fair conditions of trade

Material issues relating to Stakeholder engagement and various 
groupings are as follows:

STAKEHOLDERS WHO ARE REGULATORS
These Stakeholders have got a material impact on decision making 
processes of Magalies Water and is the DWS as a Regulator and 
the Honourable Minister as a Shareholder. Material issues of 
engagement with these Stakeholders are as follows:
• Performance of Magalies Water
• Water pricing
• Water quality
• Progress on the Ministerial directives

STAKEHOLDER WHOM MAGALIES WATER 
PROVIDES SERVICES TO
These stakeholders are Municipalities, Traditional Authorities 
within the North West Province, North West Provincial Portfolio 
Committee on Local Government, Mayors of Municipalities, 
Mines, Industries, North West Premier co-ordinating council, 
Parliamentary Portfolio Committee on Water and Sanitation and 
the DWS. Material issues of engagement with these Stakeholders 
were as follows: 
• Magalies Water intervention in the Madibeng Local Municipality
• Engagements on the empowerment role of Magalies Water 

through the Supply Chain Management system
• Water supply explorations and associated partnerships
• Expansion plans and the role of Magalies Water as a RWU in 

the Waterberg District Municipality
• Water supply quantities and quality
• Water pricing

STAKEHOLDERS WHO PROVIDE SERVICES TO 
MAGALIES WATER
These are Stakeholders who provide essential services to Magalies 
Water and primarily include employees of Magalies Water and 
service providers. Material issues of engagement with these 
Stakeholders are conditions of their service and trade.
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Operations of Magalies Water are motivated by direct and indirect 
impacts of the environmental, political, economic, legal, social as 
well as technological factors that may have a positive and negative 
effects on operations. Those impacts are measured against 
the expectations from the Boards’ Executive Authority being 
the Minister of Water and Sanitation through the performance 
parameters agreed upon in the Shareholders Compact. In 
adherence to the broader developmental plan of Government, 
the strategic direction of Magalies Water was further guided by 
among others, the following: 
• State of the Nation Address by the State President of South 

Africa, 
• National Budget Address presented by the Minister of Finance,
• Medium Term Strategic Framework (MTSF) which provides a 

plan for implementation of the NDP
• National Water Resource Strategy (NWRS), and 
• Strategy of the DWS

The Annual Performance Plan of Magalies is grounded on the 
strategic perspectives discussed below: 

CUSTOMER AND STAKEHOLDER 
PERSPECTIVE
The essence of the customer and stakeholder perspective is to 
align the organisation with customer and stakeholder needs in 
order to have a consistent approach in service delivery. 
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The following key performance indicators and achievements targets related to this strategic perspective: 

Strategic 
objectives

Key performance 
indicator Annual target Annual performance Reasons for non/over-achievement

To provide 
sustainable water 
services to bulk 
customers

Compliance with  
the scheduled 
maintenance plan

100% 98% Emergency maintenance work that was 
carried out led to deviation from the set 
maintenance schedule. Delayed 
procurement of critical spares and repairs 
to critical production assets resulted in 
job cards remain open at the end of the 
financial year. These job cards will be 
closed when the assets or equipment has 
been fixed as required by the Assets 
Maintenance Plan in the first quarter of 
the new financial year. 

Reduced number of 
hours of unplanned 
interruptions

Vaalkop – 17 hours 
(30% of 58 hours)

Wallmannsthal – 
13 hours (20% of 
63 hours)

Klipdrift – 35 hours 
(20% of 176 hours)

Cullinan – 10 hours 
(20% of 53hours)

Vaalkop – (19) hours

Wallmannsthal – 
(10.4) hours 

Klipdrift – (336) hours

Cullinan – 31 hours

Reduction of the number of hours of 
unplanned interruptions could not be 
achieved due to emergency breakdowns 
that occured during the financial year. 
There are also instances where the 
contractors caused frequent damage to 
the existing infrastructure, especially at 
the Klipdrift plant. All the breakdowns 
were repaired during the financial year 
and an option of a clause for contractors 
liability for damages of Magalies Water 
assets and production lost time by the 
contractor is being explored as part of 
contract management.

To manage 
customer relations

Establish a customer 
contact centre

Functioning customer 
contact centre

Customer contact 
centre is functioning 

Performance target was met.

To meet bulk 
supply agreement 
requirements

Compliance with the 
requirements of the 
bulk supply agreement 
scorecard

100% 86% The 86% average rating was provided by 
the municipalities in terms of compliance 
to the bulk supply agreement scorecard. 
Water quantity and turnaround time 
responses were identified as key matters 
that Magalies Water should improve on 
by the customers. 

To provide quality 
potable water

Compliance to quality 
requirements of 
SANS 241: 2011 
standards

Acute 1 ≥99%  
Acute 2 ≥100% 
Chronic ≥97% 
Aesthetic ≥95% 
Operational ≥95%

Acute 1 = 99.4% 
Acute 2 = 100% 
Chronic = 99.5% 
Aesthetic = 96.6% 
Operational = 95.7%

Treatment processes were optimised to 
treat the raw water to ensure that the 
final potable water complies with the 
SANS 241 standards.

To manage 
Stakeholder 
relations

Compliance with the 
stakeholder 
engagement plan 
milestones

100% 100% Performance target was met.

FINANCE PERSPECTIVE
The finance perspective measures the economic consequences of the decision making process by the Board and Management of Magalies 
Water. 

The following key performance indicators and achievements targets related to this strategic perspective:

Strategic 
objectives

Key 
performance 
indicator Annual target

Annual 
performance Reasons for non/over-achievement

To ensure 
business growth
 

Increase in water 
sales volumes

6.5% (up to  
88 650 490 
kilolitres) 

-0.48%  
(81 959 188 
kilolitres 
achieved)

Planned water sales volumes were not met at the Vaalkop 
Water Treatment Plant due to delays in commissioning of 
additional capacity. Increased number of power failures 
and emergency breakdowns also resulted in planned sales 
volumes not being met. Poor raw water quality resulted 
in increased filter backwash rates which also, adversely 
affected sales volumes at the Vaalkop Water Treatment 
Plant. Sales restrictions to the Thabazimbi Local 
Municipality due to non-payment of water sales resulted 
in less volumes being sold due to inflexibility of high lift 
pumps as that water could not be redireced. Poor raw 
water quality, increased number of power failures and 
emergency breakdowns resulted in sales volumes not 
being met at the Wallmannsthal, Klipdrift and Cullinan 
Water Treatment Plants. Commissioning of the Vaalkop 
pumping capacity is however envisaged for the end of 
September 2016. Klipdrift Plant is also expanded to an 
additional capacity up to 42ML/day and the planned 
commissioning thereof is the end of December 2016. 
Further, the alternative energy study will be conducted to 
provide options on alternative sources of energy for 
Magalies Water.

Expand the 
infrastructure to 
grow the 
business

100% Project 
completion 
milestones

65% Project expenditure and milestones were not met due to 
funding shortfalls as funding was not available to carry 
out the committed capital expenditure budget to an 
amount of R1 billion. Projects milestones and expenditure 
were however prioritised on the basis of available funding 
to an amount of R395 million which was fully utilised for 
the financial year. A funding model, which is aligned to 
the capital expansion master plan and budget will be 
implemented in the 2016/17 financial year. 

92% capital 
expansions 
expenditure/total 
capital 
expenditure 
budget

39%

STRATEGY AND PERFORMANCE 
CONTINUED
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Strategic 
objectives

Key 
performance 
indicator Annual target

Annual 
performance Reasons for non/over-achievement

To achieve 
sustainable 
financial returns

Percentage 
EBITDA 
(operating surplus 
to sales)

17% 18% The performance was met and exceeded as the entity 
managed to generate positive cash flows on its own 
operations due to efficiencies that were realised at a 
production level and cost containment measures 
implemented to curb costs.

Percentage net 
surplus to equity

5% 4% The target is not met due to water sales volumes that 
were not met at the Vaalkop Water Treatment Plant due 
to delays in commissioning of additional capacity. 
Increased number of power failures and emergency 
breakdowns resulted in planned sales volumes not being 
met at the Wallmannsthal, Klipdrift and Cullinan Water 
Treatment Plants. 

To manage 
financial risks
 
 
 
 

Percentage return 
in investments

5% 10% A higher than expected rate of return on investments was 
derived as investments were placed in various assets that 
yielded returns that performs above the benchmark Short 
Term Funds Interest rate.

Percentage costs 
to revenue

83% 82% The performance was met and exceeded as the entity 
managed to generate positive cash flows on its own 
operations due to efficiencies that were realised at a 
production level and cost containment measures 
implemented to curb costs.

Current assets to 
current liabilities 
ratio

2 1.6 The target was not met as withdrawals were made from 
the investments to finance the capital expansion 
programme. 

Number of 
debtors days

50 50 days Performance target was met.

Number of 
creditors days

30 27 days The benchmark average number of creditors days is 
exceeded as Creditors payments are made twice in a 
month to ensure compliance with the National 
Government requirement of Creditors payments within 
30 days.

Strategic 
objectives

Key 
performance 
indicator Annual target

Annual 
performance Reasons for non/over-achievement

To efficiently and 
effectively conduct 
Section 30 
business
 

Average return 
on newly 
acquired Section 
30 activities

Positive NPV Positive NPV Performance target was met.

Average return 
on existing 
Section 30 
business

5% 13% The existing Section 30 activities were effectively 
managed to recover all costs such that there is no 
cross-subsidisation from the primary activity. 

Compliance with 
service delivery 
requirements of 
Section 30 
agreements

100% 15% Performance is not within expectations due to funding 
shortfalls in funding all the Section 30 deliverables. 
Discussions are taking place with the DWS to fund the 
unfunded areas concerning Section 30 mandates. 

STRATEGY AND PERFORMANCE 
CONTINUED
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PROCESSES PERSPECTIVE
The processes perspective provides for competencies and technologies to effectively deliver services to customers and stakeholder in 
ensuring that there is current and future success of Magalies Water. 

The following key performance indicators and targets related to this strategic perspective:

Strategic 
objectives

Key performance 
indicator Annual target

Annual 
performance Reasons for non/over-achievement

To contribute to an 
affordable tariff by 
managing 
production costs

Average unit costs of 
production

3.25/kl R3.22/kl The performance was due to efficiencies 
that were realised at a production level 
and cost containment measures 
implemented to curb costs.

To develop business 
efficiency and 
effectiveness

Plant and equipment 
availability

Vaalkop – 95%
Klipdrift – 95%
Wallmannsthal – 95%
Cullinan – 95%

Vaalkop – 95.2% 
Wallmansthal – 
98.3%
Klipdrift – 97.8%
Cullinan – 99.8%

Critical plant and equipment was 
available most of the time during the 
financial year. A plant availability 
benchmark of 95% was realised at all 
the Water Treatment Plants due to 
preventative maintenance that was 
carried out.

Implement an integrated 
Information 
Communications 
Technology (ICT) solution 
across the value chain

100% implementation 
of phase 1

100% of phase 1 
implemented

Performance target was met.

Average water loss 5% 5.9% High Plant losses are due to deteriorating 
Raw Water quality which resulted in 
short filter runs and increased backwash 
rates in Vaalkop prior to the use of 
Chlorine dioxide. In addition the 
treatment process in the Klipdrift Water 
Treatment Plant does not have recycling 
of supernatant and primary settling tank, 
thus resulting in filter overload and 
frequent backwashing of blocked filters. 
The Klipdrift Water Treatment Plant is 
being upgraded to include a process for 
recycling of supernatant and 
commissioning is planned to take place 
in December 2016. 

Implement the enterprise 
risk management plan 

22 risk management 
activities

24 risk 
management 
activities

Performance target was met.

Audit opinion for the 
2014/15 financial year

Unqualified Unqualified Performance target was met.

Strategic 
objectives

Key performance 
indicator Annual target

Annual 
performance Reasons for non/over-achievement

To contribute to the 
conservation of the 
natural environment

Retention of ISO 14001 
certification

Retain ISO certification 
at all four operational 
sites

ISO 14001 
certification 
retained at all 
four operational 
sites

Performance target was met.

To provide a safe 
and healthy 
working 
environment
 

Disabling Injury Frequence 
Rate (DIFR) within 
threshold

1 0.6 The disabling injuries frequency rate is 
achieved due to implementation of 
safety procedures at the operational sites 
of Magalies Water. This included 
mandatory training and awareness on 
safety related matters.

Obtain OHS18001 
certification for the 
Vaalkop plant

OHS 18001 
Certification at 
Vaalkop

OHS 18001 
certification is 
still in progress

The procedures and processes for the 
OHS 18001 system were drafted and 
surveillance audits were conducted for 
gap analysis. Full implementation of the 
system could not be achieved due to 
lack of understanding of the system at 
the operational level. Training will 
therefore be conducted and the full 
implementation done by December 
2016.

STRATEGY AND PERFORMANCE 
CONTINUED
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LEARNING AND GROWTH
The learning and growth perspective provides sustenance to the business with respect of learning, growth, improvements and change of 
employees and people within the communities served by Magalies Water. 

The following key performance indicators and targets related to this strategic perspective:

Strategic objectives
Key performance 
indicator Annual target Annual performance

Reasons for non/over-
achievement

To improve the 
competency levels of 
staff and maintain staff 
retention

Training conducted as 
per the training plans 

Employee levels P2 to 
P14 (179 employees)

Employee levels  
P2 to P14 (112 
employees)

Some of the skills programmes 
were not implemented during 
the financial year due to 
funding constraints. Those 
programmes will be 
implemented in the 2016/17 
financial year.

Extension of the 
performance 
management system 
implementation

Employee levels  
P2 to P14

Employee levels  
P2 to P14

Performance target was met.

Staff turnover 3% 1.32% Magalies Water retains staff 
due to a conducive working 
environment and 
implementation of retention 
policies.

TRANSFORMATION AND EMPOWERMENT
The transformation and empowerment perspective seeks to define a framework in advancement of the National development and 
empowerment trajectory.  The resultant outputs of a transformation and empowerment framework are economic benefit, skills 
development and empowerment of emerging black enterprises. 

The following key performance indicators and targets related to this strategic perspective:

Strategic 
objectives

Key performance 
indicator Annual target Annual performance

Reasons for non/
over-achievement

To contribute 
towards 
Governments’ 
transformation and 
empowerment 
trajectory

Implemented 
empowerment 
projects 

4 
– Internal bursaries (20)
– External bursaries (10)
– Wellness Programme 
– Corporate Social 

Investments activities

4
– Internal bursaries (26)
– External bursaries (10)
– Wellness Programme 
– Corporate Social 

Investments activities

Performance target 
was met.

Number of jobs 
created

Local labour employed 
through the capital 
expansions programme (500)
Internship programme (10)
Learnership programme (50)
Graduate engineers capacity 
building programme (10)

Local labour employed 
through the capital 
expansions programme (0)
Internship programme (9)
Learnership programme (20)
Graduate engineers capacity 
building programme (0)

There were no new local 
labourers appointed for 
the year as contractors 
for the new capital 
expenditure projects 
were appointed close to 
year end. This was due to 
funding constraints as 
implementation was 
carried out for projects 
that are funded and have 
already commenced from 
the prior financial year.

Goods and services 
procured from SMMEs

20% 29% The achievement is as a 
results of deliberate 
efforts to procure from 
SMMEs and support 
them in making a 
contribution to the 
socio-economic situation 
of the supply area.

 Contracts awarded to 
black-owned 
companies on the 
capital expansion 
projects 

30% 43% There were deliberate 
efforts to utilise the 
capital expansion 
programme as a catalyst 
to empower black-owned 
companies to enhance 
the empowerment profile 
of Magalies Water. 

STRATEGY AND PERFORMANCE 
CONTINUED
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WATER SALES VOLUMES
Water volumes sold are a crucial business driver and a primary 
source of income for Magalies Water. The strategic imperative 
informing this crucial business driver is to ensure business growth. 
The planned benchmark for sales volumes growth during the 
2015/16 financial year was 6.5% compared to the prior year sales 
volumes. The sales volumes achieved were below target and 
reasons for this deviation are as follows: 
• The delayed commissioning of the last module of a 30ML/

day plant upgrade at the Vaalkop Water Treatment Plant, 
whereas the commissioning date was moved from October 
2015 to September 2016. This was due to governance aspects 
of projects. Planning for the water sales volumes included 
additional volumes from this upgrade and were not realised due 
to the delayed commissioning.

• Delayed commissioning of a 70ML/day highlift pumpstation to 
pump water into a distribution system.

• Power failures to an amount of 506 hours contributed 
immensely to a reduced throughput as that led to plant not 
being operational all time.

• Poor raw water quality due to elevated nutrients in the 
catchments where Magalies Water abstracts led to a reduced 
flow, thus a reduced throughput of potable water.

• Emergency maintenance as the plants were not in production 
for 684 hours due to breakdowns. 

• Restrictions were made on the supply to Thabazimbi Local 
Municipality by 60% to 5ML/day from a supply of 8.5ML/day 
due to non-payment.  This restriction had an adverse impact on 
sales volumes as this water could not be redirected.

Corrective actions to address the above key challenges that led to 
non-achievement of sales volumes are as follows:
• The governance aspects of the Vaalkop upgrade were 

addressed and the commissioning is set to take place during the 
first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year.

• Power supply in The Vaalkop Water Treatment Plant has been 
upgraded by ESKOM as part of the Vaalkop upgrade. Energy 
studies are being explored to provide options on the alternative 
sources of energy for Magalies Water.

• Processes were optimised in terms of utilisation of chemicals 
and the plant process train to address challenges posed by 
the poor raw water quality. This optimisation let to improved 
disinfection efficiency.

• To effectively manage the maintenance regime of reactive, 
proactive and preventative maintenance techniques, the asset 
maintenance plan has been loaded onto the SAP system. This 
will ensure management of tasks in a consistent manner whilst 
maintaining high standards of performance at minimum costs. 
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Sales volumes during the year are depicted in the following diagram: 
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WATER QUALITY
The final potable water, offsite reservoirs and the distribution system were assessed against SANS 241:2011, the National Standard 
which specifies the highest quality standards for drinking water. Potable water produced by Magalies Water complied with the quality 
requirements of SANS 241:2011 and thus safe for drinking purposes. Performance against targeted risk based quality determinants are as 
follows: 

Risk

Targeted 
compliance to 

SANS 241-1:2011 (%)

Actual 
performance 

against target (%)

Acute health-1 ≥99 Final: 99.4

Chronic health ≥97 Final: 99.5

Operational ≥95 Final: 95.7

Aesthetic ≥95 Final: 96.6 

Pilanesberg South Scheme 
The pipeline from Evergreen, through Sun City to the Mafenya 
reservoir has been constructed and completed. The practical 
commissioning certificate has been issued and Magalies Water has 
taken ownership of the pipeline. This will benefit the Bakubung 
Minerals and Wesizwe to enable their mining operations and the 
communities of Ledig village in the Moses Kotane Local Municipality.

The Mafenya to Phokeng/Tlhabane pipeline and pump-station 
is in detailed design stage and IRS have been completed for this 
project for submission to the DWS for funding. 

Klipvoor/Moretele South Scheme
This project will augment bulk water supply to the Bela-Bela and 
Modimolle Local Municipalities and it is envisaged that there will 
be extension of supply to Mokgoophong and Mokopane. The 
project will also extend to the Dr JS Moroka Local Municipality 
(near Rust de Winter) and supply the Northern parts of Madibeng 
and Moretele Local Municipalities currently dependent on 
groundwater. Concept design and viability assessments of 
the project have been completed and final project design is in 
progress. It is expected that construction of this scheme will 
commence from January 2017 depending on availability of funds 
from the DWS.

Klipdrift Water Treatment Plant upgrades
To address the water needs of Moretele, Bela Bela and Modimolle 
Local Municipalities, the Klipdrift Water Treatment Plant is 
being upgraded to 42ML/day from a capacity of 18ML/day. The 
following projects are being carried out in relation to this upgrade:
• Refurbishment of electrical works: This project is complete 

wherein the new medium voltage equipment for the current 
and future requirements of the plant were installed. The two 
Modimolle variable frequency controllers were retrofitted.

• Filter blockage and rising main: this is includes a civil 
component of the new 24ML/d capacity and this project has 
been practically commissioned. 

• The mechanical, electrical and instrumentation projects will be 
completed and commissioned by the end of quarter 2 of the 
2016/17 financial year.

EMERGENCY INTERVENTION IN MADIBENG 
LOCAL MUNICIPALITY
The Minister of Water and Sanitation had directed Magalies Water 
in terms of Section 41(1)(ii) of the Water Services Act, 1997 (Act 

108 of 1997) for an emergency intervention in the Madibeng 
Local Municipality to address water and sanitation challenges 
in support of the Municipality on the turn-around of its retail 
business. The other directive related to immediate intervention to 
upgrade bulk water supply systems and associated infrastructure 
that provide water in the Majakaneng area.

The intervention is made up of a number of components as 
follows: 

Jericho rural water supply project 
This project to augment supply of water in Jericho through 
ground water resources commenced in January 2016 and was 
completed in June 2016. 

Geohydrological assessments were conducted and this entailed 
detailed acquifer testing and groundwater quality analysis to 
ascertain sustainability of groundwater supply in Jericho. This 
also included testing the yield and water quality of the existing 
boreholes.

A new borehole pumping system was installed at two 
rehabilitated boreholes. The other existing three boreholes were 
equipped with new pumping systems and motors. 

A 250mm diameter pipeline was constructed to supply water 
from the reservoir into the village. New pumping mains were 
constructed and brick valve chambers were connected to 
the newly constructed pipeline. Repairs and upgrades were 
also undertaken on the existing underground network and 
the boreholes were connected to the upgraded and newly 
constructed infrastructure. Leak detection was performed and 
illegal connections were disconnected.

In implementation of this project, fourty two local labourers were 
employed when small medium and micro enterprises (SMME) 
from the community were utilised. This resulted in a socio-
economic impact to an amount of R3.2 million, which is 33% of 
the contract value. The social impact of this intervention is that 
there is an improvement in the water supply status in Jericho from 
2.1% to 50% through a borehole supply. The short to medium 
term outlook is to supply to 100% through boreholes by 2018 and 
a supply through a Regional Bulk Water Scheme from 2022.

The Minister of Water and Sanitation, Honourable Nomvula 
Mokonyane launched this project on the 1 July 2016 in Jericho 
together with the Premier of the North West Province Honourable 
Obakeng Supra Ramoeletsi Mahumapelo.

CAPITAL EXPANSIONS
Capital expansions are driven by a strategic imperative to grow 
the business of Magalies Water through capacity upgrades, 
increase in assets base and footprint in enhancement of 
service delivery in the area of supply. This is a direct response 
in addressing the strategic challenge of water shortages and 
increasing water demand nationally. This is implemented through 
a capital expansions masterplan which is a blueprint to effect 
growth through expansion projects.

Effective management of the projects portfolio is considered 
crucial during this growth phase and it was planned that 92% of 
the funds earmarked for projects will be utilised. A budget to an 
amount of R1 billion was planned and 39% of that was utilised. 
This was attributable to a funding deficit as funding was not 
available to carry out projects implementation of that magnitude. 
An amount of R395 million was available and fully utilised as 
projects implementation was reprioritised to only implement 
projects that had already commenced and close to completion.

The capital expansions during the year were carried for the 
following key projects:

Pilanesberg Bulk Water Supply Scheme
The Pilanesberg Bulk Water Supply Scheme (PBWSS) was 
conceptualised to provide water due to growing domestic and 
industrial needs in the Moses Kotane, Rustenburg and the 
Thabazimbi Local Municipalities. The industrial component will 
seek to benefit the platinum mines being Maseve, Wesizwe and 
Platmin who are jointly with Magalies Water implementing this 

scheme and will contribute 55% of the funding requirement 
of the PBWSS. The National Government has made financial 
resources available over the medium term in a form of Regional 
Bulk Infrastructure Grants (RBIG) to finance the 45% of the 
social component. Implementation of PBWSS commenced in 
August 2013 and the following components of the scheme were 
implemented during the 2015/16 financial year:

Vaalkop Water Treatment Plant upgrades
The second 30ML/day module was constructed at the Vaalkop 
Water Treatment Plant including the highlift pump-station 
and the reservoir at La Patrie. The 30ML/day module and the 
highlift pump-station will be completed in the second quarter 
of the 2016/17 financial year. The reservoir at La Patrie has been 
completed and is already commissioned.

Pilanesberg North Scheme Phase 2
A contractor was appointed in May 2016 for construction of 
a Tuschenkomst to Ruighoek pipeline and pumpstation. This 
infrastructure will alleviate water supply constraints to Mabeskraal 
and surrounding areas with the expected completion in the 
2017/18 financial year.

Construction of a pipeline from La Patrie to Moruleng and 
Sandfontein, Padda to Thabazimbi and Swartklip is part of the 
portfolio of projects within the Phase 2 of the Pilanesberg North 
Scheme. These projects remain at the detailed design phase and 
Implementation Readiness Studies (IRS) has been completed for 
submission to the DWS for funding.

OPERATIONS 
CONTINUED
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DROUGHT INTERVENTION IN 
KGETLENGRIVIER LOCAL MUNICIPALITY
Extreme drought conditions led to the Swartruggens dam running 
dry, consequently a yield of the dam was inadequate to meet 
demand. Raw water from the Swartruggens dam is abstracted 
for treatment at the Swartruggens Water Treatment Plant which 
then supplies Swartruggens and Borolelo. Potable water from 
the Swartruggens Water Treatment Plant is augmented by a 
spring source in the Polkadraai spruit which also runs dry during 
the times of drought. Water was therefore conveyed over 40 
kilometres from Koster to Swartruggens through tankering which 
was deemed not cost effective. Drought was also experienced in 
Koster and necessitated refurbishment of boreholes.

Refurbishment of boreholes in Rosmincol
The cost effective solution was identification of two boreholes 
as a “fill-up” point for the tankers in Rosmincol which is 13 
kilometres outside Swartruggens. A geo-hydrological assessment 
of the boreholes was carried out to determine the pumps sizes 
and necessary equipment required for the construction process to 
take effect. Both boreholes needed to be re-equipped and a total 
overhaul of the electrical supply system was required. The type 
of work required was installation of pumps, piping, concrete and 
electrical installations. 

Excavation of trenches, pipe laying and pump installation from 
boreholes to the fill-tower was performed by hand using local 
labourers. Concrete was used for construction of a fill slab 
and a fill-tower was constructed using pre-fabricated material. 
Borehole covers were constructed using reinforced concrete 
and have a sliding lid and a special key to mitigate against theft 
and vandalism. Electrical installations were done and power was 
reinstated though interactions with Eskom.

This intervention was concluded in April 2015 and a hand-over 
to the municipality was done on the beginning of June 2016. The 
social impact of this intervention is that water is supplied to the 
communities and nine temporary jobs were created. 

Refurbishment of boreholes in Koster
The three boreholes in Koster were vandalised and stripped of all 
the equipment, when their pipes were installed below the natural 
water table. The type of work required was therefore an upgrade 
of pumphouses, pipework and electrical installations.

Since the Koster area has got a very high water table, pump 
houses had to be designed. Construction work was commenced 
where the original chamber was converted into a pumphouse. The 
existing chamber was lifted and pumphouses were constructed 
on top of the chambers. New pipes were configured at each 
pumphouse to connect to the existing pipeline. Electrically driven 
mono pumps were installed and connected to the power supply 
of the boreholes. 

To mitigate against the risk of theft and vandalism, reinforced 
concrete doors and anti-theft manholes were constructed. The 
doors were constructed to provide for stability and strength, and 
were equipped with patented and unique locking device. The 
social impact of this intervention is that water is being supplied to 
Communities in the Koster area.

CUSTOMER CONTACT CENTRE
Establishment of a customer contact centre emanated from a 
customer contact business case that was developed to determine 
the most appropriate fashion to improve customer engagement 
in a centralised manner. The proposed customer contact solution 
was thus intended to among others, provide a multichannel 
facility to assist customers and seamlessly integrate into the 
business applications of Magalies Water.

The contact centre is established on the following principles of a 
Customer Relations Management (CRM) model:
• Enterprise wide strategy: the contact centre is one of the 

initiatives that support Magalies Water strategy execution and it 
aims to ensure customer centricity

• Technology driven process: technology is an enabler and the 
contact centre is part of the deliverable of the ICT strategy

• Cross functional integration: The contact centre supports all 
the business activities of Magalies Water

Letlhabile water augmentation
The scope of this project entailed augmentation of water supply 
through groundwater resources in Letlhabile. Geohydrological 
assessment was performed to establish sustainability of 
groundwater resources. An existing borehole was equipped when 
additional three boreholes were drilled, tested and equipped. 
New elevated steel tanks were constructed and installed to the 
boreholes. Refurbishment was done on the existing underground 
network. Leak detection and disconnection of illegal connections 
was done. 

Maboloka water augmentation
The scope of this project entailed augmentation of water supply 
through groundwater resources in Maboloka. Geohydrological 
assessment was performed to establish sustainability of 
groundwater resources. Refurbishment was done on the existing 
six boreholes and additional six boreholes were drilled, tested 
and equipped. Housing and fencing of the boreholes was also 
done. Refurbishment was also done on the existing underground 
network. Leak detection and disconnection of illegal connections 
was done.

Majakaneng intervention
The complexity of water distribution in Majakaneng is that the 
system layout could not be confirmed and the extent to which 
the underground infrastructure is damaged is unknown. Further 
township developments took place over the years and most of the 
areas where growth took place are not formalised thus leaving a 
large area un-reticulated.

The scope of work in Majakaneng commenced with geo-
hydrological studies performed to identify potential groundwater 
sources. Production boreholes were identified as an outcome of 
the geo-hydrological studies and were tested to establish long-
term sustainable yield. Magnetic flow meters were installed as 
they possess telemetric capacity. 

Detailed assessments were performed at the reservoir to bring 
it to its optimum functioning state. A disinfection plant was 
constructed to treat water from the boreholes before distribution 
to the community. The reticulation system in Majakaneng was 
commissioned by releasing water into the network and reactively 
repairing leaks through utilisation of community contractors. 
Construction of concrete basis for yard taps and installation of 
communal water points was done. 

Yard audits were conducted to establish areas that do not have 
reticulation and at the end of the intervention, it was established 
that reticulated areas that have got access to water was 87%. 
The outstanding 13% is the areas that do not have access to 
water and are not reticulated not formalised. The demand in 
Majakaneng was still exceeding supply and this necessitated 
further scope of work to address the outstanding 13%. 

BRITS WATER TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADE
The Brits Water Treatment Plant is being upgraded from a capacity 
of 60ML/day to 80ML/day through the RBIG programme and the 
scope of work entails the following: 
• Reroute of a raw water pipeline and construction of new pre-

ozone inlet works
• Expansion of flocculation, DAF units and RGS
• Expansion of existing sludge dams
• Construction of a new screw, supernatant and DAF recyle 

pumpstation
• Expansion of clear water and Chlorine contact tanks 
• Construction of pipelines and pipelines appurtenances

The project is 31% complete and progress was slow due to 
community protests on demands that community SMMEs be 
empowered in the construction process. The community demands 
were since addressed and construction has commenced with 
expected completion date of August 2017.

KOSTER WASTE WATER TREATMENT PLANT
This entails construction of a Waste Water Treatment Plant with 
an associated outflow sewer through the RBIG programme. The 
Waste Water Treatment Plant will service up to 5 000 households 
in the Koster area and twenty two job opportunities have been 
created through utilisation of local labour. 

OPERATIONS 
CONTINUED
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OVERVIEW
The strategic intent of the Human Resources practises of Magalies 
Water is to respond to organisations’ bulk infrastructure needs 
through human resources practices of recruitment, training, 
goal setting, rewards management, performance appraisals and 
retention. The capacity of Magalies Water to retain employees has 
been enhanced through review of policies and procedures that 
provides effect to retention of employees and for that purpose, a 
staff retention benchmark was maintained below 3%.

A performance driven culture is being embedded throughout the 
organisation as the performance management system is being 
progressively implemented. The system has now been successfully 
extended to Peromnes levels 14 during the 2015/16 financial year. 
The performance management systems will be fully operational 
throughout the entire organisation to Peromnes level 18 during 
the 2016/17 financial year.

Skills shortage is one of the strategic challenges facing the 
country, and Magalies Water as an entity of State is faced with 
that challenge. The internal training initiatives were conducted 
in accordance to the specific training needs of employees in 
Peromnes level 2 to 14 and this aligns to the performance 
contracting system. The organisation has successfully 
implemented the skills development initiatives to capacitate the 
employees in order to enable the organisation to achieve and 
realise its strategic objective through highly skilled workforce. 

Capacity has also been built among unemployed youth who 
were recruited from local communities into water treatment and 
process control learnership and internships. Bursaries have also 
been provided to local youth to further their studies in the field of 
Mechanical, Electrical and Civil Engineering. 

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
A business case for amendments to the structure is to achieve 
efficiency and improvement of turnaround times in service 
delivery. A review was made to the structure to support the 
growth trajectory of the organisation.
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DISABLED STAFF

 Disabled Staff

 Male  Female

Levels Current Target Current Target

Top management – – – –

Senior management – – – –

Professional qualified 1 – – 1

Skilled – – – –

Semi-skilled 2 2 – –

Unskilled – – – –

Total 3 2 0 1

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

Nature of disciplinary action Number

Verbal warning 0

Written warning 3

Final written warning 1

Dismissal 1

Pertinent Human Resources oversight statistics are as follows:

TRAINING COSTS

Programme/objective/activity

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 
expenditure as 

a percentage of 
personnel costs

Number of 
employees 

trained

Average 
training cost 

per employee 
(R’000)

To contribute towards transformation 
and developmental agenda R115 306 R5 044 4.37% 112 45

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS 
 MALE

African Coloured Indian White

Levels Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top management 2 – – – – – 1 –
Senior management 6 – 1 – 1 – – –
Professional qualified 5 – – – – – 1 –
Skilled 12 – – – – – 6 –
Semi-skilled 53 – 1 – – – 8 –
Unskilled 51 – – – – – – –

Total 129 – 2 – 1 0 16 –

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS

 FEMALE

African Coloured Indian White

Levels Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top management 1 – – – – – – –

Senior management 5 2 – – – 1 – –

Professional qualified 3 2 1 1 – 1 2 1

Skilled 3 2 – – 1 1 – –

Semi-skilled 36 15 1 2 – 5 7 3

Unskilled 10 0 2 – 3 – 4

Total 58 21 2 5 1 11 9 8

HUMAN RESOURCES 
CONTINUED
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PROVISION FOR PERFORMANCE REWARDS 

Item

Performance 
rewards 

(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

% of performance 
rewards to total 
personnel costs 

Top management 1 040 119 633 6.7%

Senior management 505

Professional qualified 1 571

Skilled, semi-skilled and unskilled 4 903

Total 8 019 119 633 6.7%

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS
Magalies Water ran a comprehensive Employee Wellness Programme (EWP) during the 2015/16 financial year covering the following 
wellness aspects:
• Personal counselling services were provided to employees through an individual therapeutic sessions.
• Interpersonal matters wherein issues are about another person or other people besides the employee. Such matters are dealt with either 

in couple or group counselling environment where the matter arose as a direct involvement of a third person.
• Medical which includes counselling, education and advice that encompass physical fitness, diet and overall health risk management.
• Occupation workplace matters
• Trauma arising from incidents that occurs outside of normal human experience, heightened feelings of anxiety and events that threatens 

a person or a loved one with either physical harm or death. 

The EWP was effectively utilised by the employees during the financial year and a Voluntary Counselling and Testing for HIV was held at all 
operational sites. 

REASONS FOR STAFF TURNOVER

Reason Number

Death 0

Resignation 10

Dismissal 2

Retirement 1

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

Programme 
Number of 
employees

Approved 
posts Vacancies

Top management 4 7 3

Senior management 13 17 4

Professional qualified 32 47 15

Skilled 38 49 11

Semi-skilled 99 105 6

Unskilled 67 76 9

Total 253 301 48

PERSONNEL COSTS BY ITEM

Item

Total expenditure 
for the entity 

(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure as a % 

of total expenditure
Number of 
employees

Average 
personnel costs 

(R’000)

Direct employee costs 420 833 52 992 12.6 148 R358

Support services 66 641 15.8 105 R634

Total 420 833 119 633 28.4 253 R472

PERSONNEL COSTS BY SALARY BAND

Level
Personnel 

expenditure

% of personnel 
expenditure to 
total personnel

Number of 
employees

Average personnel 
costs per employee 

(R’000)

Top management 10 478 8.6 4 R2 619
Senior management, professional qualified, 
skilled, semi-skilled and unskilled 109 155 91.4 249 R438

Total 119 633 100 253 R472

HUMAN RESOURCES 
CONTINUED
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BUSINESS CHALLENGES
The business challenges of Information Communications and 
Technology (ICT) were provided contextualised as legacy 
systems were fragmented and manually intensive. This led to 
various versions of financial and non-financial information on 
performance of Magalies Water. Further, Magalies Waters’ billing 
capability was ineffective when applications and data depository 
were not integrated. There was also a lack of systems to support 
business intelligence and insights.

ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING
As part of its strategic journey, Magalies Water implemented an 
integrated Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system aimed at 
seamlessly consolidating the organisation’s business functions and 
optimisation of business operations. Modernisation of Magalies 
Water’s core administrative and customer service functions, 
improved productivity and capabilities were achieved to provide 
better information to Stakeholders and Management.

The system go-live was in November 2015, and key achievements 
were noted on the following capabilities:

Billing: The operational efficiencies of implementing the SAP 
ISU billing system are realised through reduction of a billing 
process from 19 days on the legacy system to seven days through 
utilisation of the SAP ISU billing system.

Procure to pay: Through this capability, it was ensured that 
spending is capped as per the allocated budget and this led to 
a reduction of procurement workload by automating contract 
expenditure. There is an improved flow and approval of 
procurement documents including utilisation of mobile devices. 
Further controls were built into the system for structured 
procure to pay process for prevention of duplicate payments and 
compliance with Supply Chain Management Regulations.

Finance: An integrated enterprise structure was created to allow 
for reporting at various organisational levels. A full online assets 
register is maintained and manual capturing of accounting entries 
has been reduced due to mass processing of journals. 

Maintenance: Operational core functions of integrated assets 
management, maintenance history, visibility of maintenance 
against assets including costs, detailed maintenance cost 
reporting is available on the system. This capability will enhance 
reactive, proactive and preventative maintenance activities. 

Data and applications architecture: Business modules were 
built into a single operational database allowing for integration 
and a consolidated central depository of data.

ICT GOVERNANCE
The Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA) 
issued a framework for Corporate Governance of Information 
Communications and Technology Framework (CGICTF) in 
the Public Sector. This was a response to inclusion of ICT into 
Corporate Governance in the Public Sector and a growing trend 
wherein ICT is a business enabler.

The CGICTF recommended implementation of ICT governance in 
the following three phases:
• Phase 1: Create an enabling environment
• Phase 2: Achieve business and ICT strategic alignment
• Phase 3: Ensure continuous improvement through an 

iterative process

All deliverables of the three phases were implemented except for 
the ICT projects portfolio management framework which was 
drafted and approved in the 2016/17 financial year. Governance 
of ICT will therefore be carried out within Magalies Water as a 
matter of continuous improvements.

ICT AUDIT
The SAP basis audit was conducted by the Auditor-General 
since the 2015/16 financial year was the first year of SAP 
implementation.  Findings were raised on information technology 
systems, most of which were resolved during the audit.  
A roadmap has been developed to address all the outstanding 
ICT audit issues by the end of the 2016/17 financial year.  
Progress in that regard will be managed through the ICT Steering 
Committee, the RMC and the Risk Committee.
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The Corporate Social Investments (CSI) of Magalies Water is 
aligned with key Government priorities of improvement in the 
livelihoods of disadvantaged communities. The ultimate impact of 
CSI implementation is to enable economic impact whilst driving 
the socio-economic well-being of communities within which 
Magalies Water operates. The CSI implementation is guided by a 
policy focusing on rural community including rural sanitation. 

Magalies Waters’ CSI implementation is informed by an annual 
request from the Local Municipalities. The requests are then 
followed up by site inspections and scoping with respective 
Municipalities to develop a business case and prioritisation 
of projects on the basis of available resources. An amount of 
R2.8 million was spent for the CSI programme of the 2016/17 
financial year and local emerging contractors are utilised for 
implementation purposes.
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The following projects were implemented during the 2015/16 financial year: 

Beneficiary Project description and impact assessment Progress

Bela Bela Local Municipality Installation of fifty Ventilated Improved Pit (VIP) toilets. Concrete toilets with 
cisterns and wash basins were installed in Tsakane village. The project benefits 
50 beneficiaries and eight jobs were created.

100%

Modimolle Local Municipality Equipping of boreholes around the town and Phagameng township to provide 
water to an amount of 1.9ML/day in addition to the existing supply. Five jobs 
were created and this created an impact to a total population of 8 727 
people.

100%

Smashblock informal settlement in 
Thabazimbi Local Municipality

Equipping of existing and drilling of new boreholes to provide an additional 
0.5KL/day of water to the existing water supply. Four jobs were created as a 
results of implementation of this CSI initiative

100%

Moretele Local Municipality 240 jojo tanks with a capacity of 1 000 litres were distributed in Kgomo-
kgomo, Mathibestad, Carousel view, Ramaphosa, Denhouse, Maubane, 
Greenside and Bosplaas. 240 households within 11 wards benefitted from this 
CSI initiative.

100%

Moses Kotane Local Municipality Equipping of boreholes in Mapaputle and Mogoditshane villages and 
connection of supply to the elevated steel tanks. An additional storage 
capacity of 18 Kilolitres was made available and four jobs were created from 
this initiative. This programme will be concluded in the first quarter of the 
2016/17 financial year.

75%

Rustenburg Local Municipality A “war on leaks” programme targeting areas where there is a high minimum 
night flows due to leaks in the reticulation system is being carried out in 
Boitekong Extension 2. This programme will be concluded in the first quarter 
of the 2016/17 financial year. 

75%



52 53Annual Report 2015/16 Magalies Water 
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ES Magalies Water commissioned a laboratory during the 2015/16 and is one of the leading ISO/IEC 17025 accredited laboratories in the fields 
of Microbiology and Chemistry in the North West Province.  Equipped with the most advanced equipment in analytical services, 40 000 
analyses are conducted annually in a broad range of chemical, microbiological and molecular biological analyses.  

The following tables reflect analyses performed on Magalies Water plants:

Vaalkop WTW 1

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number

of samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
Standards 

limits      

Table 1 – risk-defined health- 
acute 1

E. Coli count/100mL ≤1 53 0 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Nitrate mg/L N ≤11 49 1.1 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Nitrite mg/L N ≤0.90 52 0.062 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Sulphate mg/L SO4 ≤500 12 82 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Free cyanide ug/L CN- ≤2.0E2 3 37 100.0% ≥99 Excellent

Average compliance 100.0% ≥99 Excellent

Table 2 – risk-defined health- 
acute 2

Giardia cysts# count/10L ≤1 4 0 100.0% 100 Excellent
Cryptosporidium oocysts# count/10L ≤1 4 0 100.0% 100 Excellent
Enteric viruses: PCR (direct)# count/10L ≤1 4 0 100.0% 100 Excellent

Average compliance 100.0% 100 Excellent
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Vaalkop WTW 1

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number

of samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
Standards 

limits      

Table 4 – risk-defined health-
operational

Total coliform count/100mL ≤10 53 0.2 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Total plate count count/1mL ≤1 000 52 35 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Somatic coliphages count/10mL ≤1 11 0.9 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
pH @ 25°C pH units ≥5.00 to

 ≤9.70
53 7.51 100.0% ≥95 Excellent

Turbidity NTU ≤1.00 53 1.22 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Aluminium µg/L Al ≤300 37 21 100.0% ≥95 Excellent

Average compliance 100.0% ≥95 Excellent

Table 5 – risk-defined health-
aesthetic

Electrical Conductivity @ 25°C mS/m ≤170.0 53 71.73 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Total dissolved solids at 180°C mg/L ≤1200 50 381 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Turbidity NTU ≤5.00 53 1.22 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Colour mg/L Pt-Co ≤15 53 12 83.0% ≥95 Unacceptable
Chloride mg/L Cl- ≤300 12 88 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Sulphate mg/L SO4 ≤250 12 82 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Ammonium mg/L N ≤1.50 52 0.049 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Iron ug/L Fe ≤300 42 53 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Manganese ug/L Mn ≤100 43 28 97.7% ≥95 Excellent
Sodium mg/L Na ≤200 10 67 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Zinc mg/L Zn ≤5.0 12 0.87 91.7% ≥95 Unacceptable
Phenolic compounds ug/L ≤10 0   ≥95  

Average compliance 97.0% ≥95 Excellent

Vaalkop WTW 1

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number

of samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
Standards 

limits      

Table 3 – risk-defined health-
chronic

Chlorine free mg/L ≤5.00 53 1.85 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Monochloramines mg/L ≤3.00 4 0.77 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Fluoride mg/L F- ≤1.5 51 0.31 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Iron ug/L Fe ≤2 000.0 42 53 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Manganese ug/L Mn ≤400 43 28 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Chromium ug/L Cr ≤50 12 11 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Cobalt ug/L Co ≤500 12 9.2 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Copper ug/L Cu ≤2 000 12 10 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Lead ug/L Pb ≤10 10 9.0 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Nickel ug/L Ni ≤70 12 11 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Cadmium ug/L Cd ≤3.00 9 2.67 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Uranium# ug/L U ≤30 8 2.8 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Vanadium# ug/L V ≤200 9 7.9 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Arsenic# mg/kg As ≤10 8 5.1 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Antimony# ug/L Sb ≤20 8 5.4 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Barium# ug/L Ba ≤700 0   ≥97  
Boron# ug/L B ≥1 500 to 

≤2 400
0   ≥97  

Selenium# ug/L Se ≤40 8 3.8 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Mercury µg/L Hg ≤6.0 11 0.93 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Organic carbon total mg/L C ≤10.0 47 6.23 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Organic carbon dissolved mg/L C ≤10 0   ≥97  
Bromoform mg/L ≤0.100 50 0.00970 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Bromodichloromethane mg/L ≤0.0600 50 0.0316 94.0% ≥97 Unacceptable
Chloroform mg/L ≤0.300 50 0.0498 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Dibromochloromethane mg/L ≤0.100 50 0.0203 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Microcystin toxins ug/L ≤1.0 51 0.14 100.0% ≥97 Excellent

Average compliance 99.7% ≥97 Excellent

LABORATORY SERVICES 
CONTINUED
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Vaalkop WTW 2

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Table 2 – risk-defined health-
acute 2

Giardia cysts# count/10L ≤1 3 0 100.0% 100 Excellent
Cryptosporidium oocysts# count/10L ≤1 3 0 100.0% 100 Excellent
Enteric viruses: PCR (direct)# count/10L ≤1 3 0 100.0% 100 Excellent

Average compliance 100.0% 100 Excellent

Table 3 – risk-defined health-
chronic

Chlorine free mg/L ≤5.00 44 1.33 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Monochloramines mg/L ≤3.00 37 0.49 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Fluoride mg/L F- ≤1.5 43 0.32 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Iron ug/L Fe ≤2 000.0 33 66 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Manganese ug/L Mn ≤400 33 26 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Chromium ug/L Cr ≤50 9 8.9 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Cobalt ug/L Co ≤500 9 8.9 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Copper ug/L Cu ≤2 000 9 8.9 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Lead ug/L Pb ≤10 6 8.3 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Nickel ug/L Ni ≤70 9 11 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Cadmium ug/L Cd ≤3.00 6 2.50 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Uranium# ug/L U ≤30 5 0.28 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Vanadium# ug/L V ≤200 7 3.4 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Arsenic# mg/kg As ≤10 5 2.1 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Antimony# ug/L Sb ≤20 5 0.36 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Barium# ug/L Ba ≤700 0   ≥97  
Boron# ug/L B ≥1 500 to 

≤2 400
0   ≥97  

Selenium# ug/L Se ≤40 5 1.1 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Mercury µg/L Hg ≤6.0 7 1.0 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Organic carbon total mg/L C ≤10.0 41 6.50 97.6% ≥97 Excellent
Organic carbon dissolved mg/L C ≤10 0   ≥97  
Bromoform mg/L ≤0.100 42 0.00881 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Bromodichloromethane mg/L ≤0.0600 42 0.0244 95.2% ≥97 Good
Chloroform mg/L ≤0.300 42 0.0460 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Dibromochloromethane mg/L ≤0.100 42 0.0164 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Microcystin toxins ug/L ≤1.0 42 0.13 100.0% ≥97 Excellent

Average compliance 99.7% ≥97 Excellent

Vaalkop WTW 1

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number

of samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
Standards 

limits      

Table 6 – other determinants

Chlorine total mg/L ≤5.00 53 2.49 98.1% ≥95 Good

Temperature ºC ≤30 52 22 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Alkalinity total mg/L CaCO3 ≥250 to ≤300 50 134 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Calcium mg/L Ca ≥150 to ≤300 46 33 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Magnesium mg/L Mg ≥70 to ≤100 42 27 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Hardness total mg/L CaCO3 ≥250 to ≤300 41 192 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Calcium precipitation potential mg/L CaCO3 ≥5 to ≤20 40 -8 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Potassium mg/L K ≥50 to ≤100 10 9 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
2-Methylisoborneol ng/L ≤10 51 34 98.0% ≥95 Good
Geosmin ng/L ≤10 51 13 98.0% ≥95 Good
Pesticides as DDT/DDE ug/L ≤0.50 12 0.0 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Chlorophyll – a ug/L ≥1.0 to ≤2.0 51 0.4 98.0% ≥95 Good
Orthophosphate mg/L P ≥1.0 to ≤10.0 52 0.27 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Chemical oxygen demand mg/L ≤0.0 0   ≥95  
Total phosphate mg/L P Not detected 0   ≥95  
Free and saline ammonia mg/L N ≤2.0 0   ≥95  
Total suspended solids at 105°C mg/L Not detected 0   ≥95  
Total solids at 105°C  Not detected 0   ≥95  

Average compliance 99.4% ≥95 Good

Vaalkop WTW 2

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Table 1 – risk-defined health- 
acute 1

E. Coli count/100mL ≤1 44 0 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Nitrate mg/L N ≤11 40 0.5 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Nitrite mg/L N ≤0.90 43 0.097 97.7% ≥99 Good
Sulphate mg/L SO4 ≤500 9 80 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Free cyanide ug/L CN- ≤2.0E2 3 37 100.0% ≥99 Excellent

Average compliance 99.5% ≥99 Excellent

LABORATORY SERVICES 
CONTINUED
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Vaalkop WTW 2

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Table 6 – other determinands

Chlorine total mg/L ≤5.00 44 1.87 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Temperature ºC ≤30 44 22 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Alkalinity total mg/L CaCO3 ≥250 to ≤300 42 138 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Calcium mg/L Ca ≥150 to ≤300 38 31 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Magnesium mg/L Mg ≥70 to ≤100 38 26 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Hardness total mg/L CaCO3 ≥250 to ≤300 37 187 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Calcium precipitation potential mg/L CaCO3 ≥5 to ≤20 34 -2 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Potassium mg/L K ≥50 to ≤100 8 9.0 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
2-Methylisoborneol ng/L ≤10 43 30 97.7% ≥95 Good
Geosmin ng/L ≤10 43 10 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Pesticides as DDT/DDE ug/L ≤0.50 9 0.0 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Chlorophyll – a ug/L ≥1.0 to ≤2.0 43 0.2 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Orthophosphate mg/L P ≥1.0 to ≤10.0 43 0.27 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Chemical oxygen demand mg/L ≤0.0 0   ≥95  
Total phosphate mg/L P Not detected 0   ≥95  
Free and saline ammonia mg/L N ≤2.0 0   ≥95  
Total suspended solids at 105°C mg/L Not detected 0   ≥95  
Total solids at 105°C  Not detected 0   ≥95  

Average compliance 99.8% ≥95 Good

Chlorophyll – a ug/L ≥1.0 to ≤2.0 50 2.1 86.0% ≥95 Unacceptable
Orthophosphate mg/L P ≥1.0 to ≤10.0 52 0.88 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Chemical oxygen demand mg/L ≤0.0 0   ≥95  
Total phosphate mg/L P Not detected 0   ≥95  
Free and saline ammonia mg/L N ≤2.0 0   ≥95  
Total suspended solids at 105°C mg/L Not detected 0   ≥95  
Total solids at 105°C  Not detected 0   ≥95  

Average compliance 98.1% ≥95 Good

Vaalkop WTW 2

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Table 4 – risk-defined health-
operational

Total coliform count/100mL ≤10 44 5 95.5% ≥95 Excellent
Total plate count count/1mL ≤1 000 43 129 95.3% ≥95 Excellent
Somatic coliphages count/10mL ≤1 9 0.2 88.9% ≥95 Unacceptable
pH @ 25°C pH units ≥5.00 to ≤9.70 44 7.79 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Turbidity NTU ≤1.00 44 0.880 65.9% ≥95 Unacceptable
Aluminium µg/L Al ≤300 31 18 100.0% ≥95 Excellent

Average compliance 90.9% ≥95 Unacceptable

Table 5 – risk-defined health-
aesthetic

Electrical conductivity @ 25°C mS/m ≤170.0 44 72.05 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Total dissolved solids at 180°C mg/L ≤1200 41 382 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Turbidity NTU ≤5.00 44 0.880 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Colour mg/L Pt-Co ≤15 44 11 70.5% ≥95 Unacceptable
Chloride mg/L Cl- ≤300 9 87 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Sulphate mg/L SO4 ≤250 9 80 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Ammonium mg/L N ≤1.50 42 0.14 97.6% ≥95 Excellent
Iron ug/L Fe ≤300 33 66 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Manganese ug/L Mn ≤100 33 26 97.0% ≥95 Excellent
Sodium mg/L Na ≤200 8 67 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Zinc mg/L Zn ≤5.0 9 0.05 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Phenolic compounds ug/L ≤10 0   ≥95  

Average compliance 96.8% ≥95 Excellent

LABORATORY SERVICES 
CONTINUED



60 61Annual Report 2015/16 Magalies Water 

Vaalkop WTW 3

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Organic carbon total mg/L C ≤10.0 46 6.50 97.8% ≥97 Excellent
Organic carbon dissolved mg/L C ≤10 0   ≥97  
Bromoform mg/L ≤0.100 48 0.00771 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Bromodichloromethane mg/L ≤0.0600 48 0.0234 97.9% ≥97 Excellent
Chloroform mg/L ≤0.300 48 0.0452 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Dibromochloromethane mg/L ≤0.100 48 0.0150 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Microcystin toxins ug/L ≤1.0 49 0.16 100.0% ≥97 Excellent

Average compliance 99.8% ≥97 Excellent

Table 4 – risk-defined 
health-operational

Total coliform count/100mL ≤10 52 5 94.2% ≥95 Good
Total plate count count/1mL ≤1 000 51 668 90.2% ≥95 Unacceptable
Somatic coliphages count/10mL ≤1 12 0.4 91.7% ≥95 Unacceptable
pH @ 25°C pH units ≥5.00 to ≤9.70 52 7.71 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Turbidity NTU ≤1.00 52 0.835 69.2% ≥95 Unacceptable
Aluminium µg/L Al ≤300 35 23 100.0% ≥95 Excellent

Average compliance 90.9% ≥95 Unacceptable

Table 5 – risk-defined 
health-aesthetic

Electrical conductivity @ 25°C mS/m ≤170.0 52 71.94 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Total dissolved solids at 180°C mg/L ≤1200 48 378 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Turbidity NTU ≤5.00 52 0.835 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Colour mg/L Pt-Co ≤15 52 12 73.1% ≥95 Unacceptable
Chloride mg/L Cl- ≤300 12 87 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Sulphate mg/L SO4 ≤250 12 83 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Ammonium mg/L N ≤1.50 50 0.18 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Iron ug/L Fe ≤300 40 53 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Manganese ug/L Mn ≤100 40 45 92.5% ≥95 Unacceptable
Sodium mg/L Na ≤200 9 70 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Zinc mg/L Zn ≤5.0 11 0.02 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Phenolic compounds ug/L ≤10 0   ≥95  

Average compliance 96.9% ≥95 Excellent

Vaalkop WTW 3

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Table 1 – risk-defined 
Health-Acute 1

E. Coli count/100mL ≤1 52 0 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Nitrate mg/L N ≤11 47 0.5 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Nitrite mg/L N ≤0.90 50 0.063 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Sulphate mg/L SO4 ≤500 12 83 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Free cyanide ug/L CN- ≤2.0E2 3 37 100.0% ≥99 Excellent

Average compliance 100.0% ≥99 Excellent

Table 2 – risk-defined 
health-acute 2

Giardia cysts# count/10L ≤1 2 0 100.0% 100 Excellent
Cryptosporidium oocysts# count/10L ≤1 2 0 100.0% 100 Excellent
Enteric viruses: PCR (direct)# count/10L ≤1 4 0 100.0% 100 Excellent

Average compliance 100.0% 100 Excellent

Table 3 – risk-defined 
health-chronic

Chlorine free mg/L ≤5.00 50 1.44 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Monochloramines mg/L ≤3.00 39 0.69 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Fluoride mg/L F- ≤1.5 50 0.32 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Iron ug/L Fe ≤2 000.0 40 53 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Manganese ug/L Mn ≤400 40 45 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Chromium ug/L Cr ≤50 11 10 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Cobalt ug/L Co ≤500 11 10 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Copper ug/L Cu ≤2 000 11 11 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Lead ug/L Pb ≤10 9 10 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Nickel ug/L Ni ≤70 10 12 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Cadmium ug/L Cd ≤3.00 8 3.00 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Uranium# ug/L U ≤30 5 4.4 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Vanadium# ug/L V ≤200 6 8.8 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Arsenic# mg/kg As ≤10 5 8.0 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Antimony# ug/L Sb ≤20 5 8.4 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Barium# ug/L Ba ≤700 0   ≥97  
Boron# ug/L B ≥1 500 to 

≤2400
0   ≥97  

Selenium# ug/L Se ≤40 5 6.0 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Mercury µg/L Hg ≤6.0 11 1.0 100.0% ≥97 Excellent

LABORATORY SERVICES 
CONTINUED
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Klipdrift final

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Table 1 – risk-defined 
health-acute 1

E. Coli count/100mL ≤1 49 0 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Nitrate mg/L N ≤11 45 2.9 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Nitrite mg/L N ≤0.90 49 0.13 98.0% ≥99 Good
Sulphate mg/L SO4 ≤500 11 40 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Free cyanide ug/L CN- ≤2.0E2 4 40 100.0% ≥99 Excellent

Average compliance 99.6% ≥99 Excellent

Table 2 – risk-defined 
health-acute 2

Giardia cysts# count/10L ≤1 4 0 100.0% 100 Excellent
Cryptosporidium oocysts# count/10L ≤1 4 0 100.0% 100 Excellent
Enteric viruses: PCR (direct)# count/10L ≤1 4 0 100.0% 100 Excellent

Average compliance 100.0% 100 Excellent

Table 3 – risk-defined 
health-chronic

Chlorine free mg/L ≤5.00 48 1.25 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Monochloramines mg/L ≤3.00 0   ≥97  
Fluoride mg/L F- ≤1.5 49 0.28 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Iron ug/L Fe ≤2 000.0 39 52 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Manganese ug/L Mn ≤400 38 25 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Chromium ug/L Cr ≤50 11 9.1 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Cobalt ug/L Co ≤500 11 9.1 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Copper ug/L Cu ≤2 000 11 10 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Lead ug/L Pb ≤10 10 9.0 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Nickel ug/L Ni ≤70 11 11 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Cadmium ug/L Cd ≤3.00 10 2.41 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Uranium# ug/L U ≤30 8 2.8 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Vanadium# ug/L V ≤200 8 5.0 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Arsenic# mg/kg As ≤10 8 5.1 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Antimony# ug/L Sb ≤20 8 5.4 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Barium# ug/L Ba ≤700 0   ≥97  
Boron# ug/L B ≥1 500 to 

≤2 400
0   ≥97  

Selenium# ug/L Se ≤40 8 3.8 100.0% ≥97 Excellent

Vaalkop WTW 3

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Table 6 – other 
determinants

Chlorine total mg/L ≤5.00 50 2.13 98.0% ≥95 Good
Temperature ºC ≤30 52 22 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Alkalinity total mg/L CaCO3 ≥250 to ≤300 48 134 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Calcium mg/L Ca ≥150 to ≤300 44 32 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Magnesium mg/L Mg ≥70 to ≤100 40 27 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Hardness total mg/L CaCO3 ≥250 to ≤300 39 186 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Calcium precipitation potential mg/L CaCO3 ≥5 to ≤20 40 -4 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Potassium mg/L K ≥50 to ≤100 9 9.0 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
2-Methylisoborneol ng/L ≤10 50 10 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Geosmin ng/L ≤10 50 10 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Pesticides as DDT/DDE ug/L ≤0.50 11 0.0 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Chlorophyll – a ug/L ≥1.0 to ≤2.0 50 0.1 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Orthophosphate mg/L P ≥1.0 to ≤10.0 50 0.29 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Chemical oxygen demand mg/L ≤0.0 0   ≥95  
Total phosphate mg/L P Not detected 0   ≥95  
Free and saline ammonia mg/L N ≤2.0 0   ≥95  
Total suspended solids 
at 105°C mg/L Not detected 0   ≥95  
Total solids at 105°C  Not detected 0   ≥95  

Average compliance 99.8% ≥95 Good

Alkalinity total mg/L CaCO3 ≥250 to ≤300 52 137 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Calcium mg/L Ca ≥150 to ≤300 47 30 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Magnesium mg/L Mg ≥70 to ≤100 43 19 97.7% ≥95 Good
Hardness total mg/L CaCO3 ≥250 to ≤300 41 141 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Calcium precipitation potential mg/L CaCO3 ≥5 to ≤20 41 1 97.6% ≥95 Good
Potassium mg/L K ≥50 to ≤100 9 8 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
2-Methylisoborneol ng/L ≤10 51 18 96.1% ≥95 Good
Geosmin ng/L ≤10 50 14 98.0% ≥95 Good
Pesticides as DDT/DDE ug/L ≤0.50 11 0.0 100.0% ≥95 Excellent

LABORATORY SERVICES 
CONTINUED



64 65Annual Report 2015/16 Magalies Water 

Klipdrift final

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Table 6 – other determinands

Chlorine total mg/L ≤5.00 0   ≥95  
Temperature ºC ≤30 49 22 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Alkalinity total mg/L CaCO3 ≥250 to ≤300 49 131 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Calcium mg/L Ca ≥150 to ≤300 43 30 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Magnesium mg/L Mg ≥70 to ≤100 39 17 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Hardness total mg/L CaCO3 ≥250 to ≤300 38 142 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Calcium precipitation potential mg/L CaCO3 ≥5 to ≤20 40 -2 97.5% ≥95 Good
Potassium mg/L K ≥50 to ≤100 9 9 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
2-Methylisoborneol ng/L ≤10 49 23 93.9% ≥95 Unacceptable
Geosmin ng/L ≤10 49 11 98.0% ≥95 Good
Pesticides as DDT/DDE ug/L ≤0.50 9 0.0 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Chlorophyll – a ug/L ≥1.0 to ≤2.0 48 0.2 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Orthophosphate mg/L P ≥1.0 to ≤10.0 49 1.2 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Chemical oxygen demand mg/L ≤0.0 0   ≥95  
Total phosphate mg/L P Not detected 0   ≥95  
Free and saline ammonia mg/L N ≤2.0 0   ≥95  
Total suspended solids at 105°C mg/L Not detected 0   ≥95  
Total solids at 105°C  Not detected 0   ≥95  

Average compliance 99.1% ≥95 Good

Klipdrift final

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Mercury µg/L Hg ≤6.0 10 1.0 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Organic carbon total mg/L C ≤10.0 43 7.02 95.3% ≥97 Good
Organic carbon dissolved mg/L C ≤10 0   ≥97  
Bromoform mg/L ≤0.100 46 0.00598 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Bromodichloromethane mg/L ≤0.0600 46 0.0223 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Chloroform mg/L ≤0.300 46 0.0783 97.8% ≥97 Excellent
Dibromochloromethane mg/L ≤0.100 46 0.00826 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Microcystin toxins ug/L ≤1.0 48 0.19 100.0% ≥97 Excellent

Average compliance 99.7% ≥97 Excellent

Table 4 – risk-defined 
health-operational

Total coliform count/100mL ≤10 49 0.7 95.9% ≥95 Excellent
Total plate count count/1mL ≤1 000 49 142 95.9% ≥95 Excellent
Somatic coliphages count/10mL ≤1 11 0 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
pH @ 25°C pH units ≥5.00 to ≤9.70 49 7.77 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Turbidity NTU ≤1.00 49 0.752 81.6% ≥95 Unacceptable
Aluminium µg/L Al ≤300 11 17 100.0% ≥95 Excellent

Average compliance 95.6% ≥95 Excellent

Table 5 – risk-defined 
health-aesthetic

Electrical conductivity @ 25°C mS/m ≤170.0 49 52.39 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Total dissolved solids at 180°C mg/L ≤1200 47 305 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Turbidity NTU ≤5.00 49 0.752 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Colour mg/L Pt-Co ≤15 49 8 89.8% ≥95 Unacceptable
Chloride mg/L Cl- ≤300 11 52 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Sulphate mg/L SO4 ≤250 11 40 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Ammonium mg/L N ≤1.50 49 0.11 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Iron ug/L Fe ≤300 39 52 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Manganese ug/L Mn ≤100 38 25 94.7% ≥95 Good
Sodium mg/L Na ≤200 9 43 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Zinc mg/L Zn ≤5.0 11 0.95 90.9% ≥95 Unacceptable
Phenolic compounds ug/L ≤10 0   ≥95  

Average compliance 97.8% ≥95 Excellent

LABORATORY SERVICES 
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Cullinan final

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Mercury µg/L Hg ≤6.0 11 0.99 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Organic carbon total mg/L C ≤10.0 48 6.25 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Organic carbon dissolved mg/L C ≤10 0   ≥97  
Bromoform mg/L ≤0.100 51 0.00578 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Bromodichloromethane mg/L ≤0.0600 51 0.0228 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Chloroform mg/L ≤0.300 51 0.117 98.0% ≥97 Excellent
Dibromochloromethane mg/L ≤0.100 51 0.00784 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Microcystin toxins ug/L ≤1.0 49 0.17 100.0% ≥97 Excellent

Average compliance 99.9% ≥97 Excellent

Table 4 – risk-defined 
health-operational

Total coliform count/100mL ≤10 51 0.08 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Total plate count count/1mL ≤1000 51 393 96.1% ≥95 Excellent
Somatic coliphages count/10mL ≤1 11 0 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
pH @ 25°C pH units ≥5.00 to ≤9.70 51 8.21 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Turbidity NTU ≤1.00 51 0.512 92.2% ≥95 Unacceptable
Aluminium µg/L Al ≤300 35 17 100.0% ≥95 Excellent

Average compliance 98.0% ≥95 Excellent

Table 5 – risk-defined 
health-aesthetic

Electrical conductivity @ 25°C mS/m ≤170.0 51 42.60 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Total dissolved solids at 180°C mg/L ≤1200 50 246 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Turbidity NTU ≤5.00 51 0.512 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Colour mg/L Pt-Co ≤15 51 8 96.1% ≥95 Excellent
Chloride mg/L Cl- ≤300 12 29 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Sulphate mg/L SO4 ≤250 12 46 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Ammonium mg/L N ≤1.50 51 0.030 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Iron ug/L Fe ≤300 40 45 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Manganese ug/L Mn ≤100 41 22 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Sodium mg/L Na ≤200 10 28 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Zinc mg/L Zn ≤5.0 12 0.04 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Phenolic compounds ug/L ≤10 0   ≥95  
Average compliance 99.6% ≥95 Excellent

Cullinan final

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Table 1 – risk-defined 
health-acute 1

E. Coli count/100mL ≤1 51 0 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Nitrate mg/L N ≤11 44 0.6 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Nitrite mg/L N ≤0.90 51 0.064 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Sulphate mg/L SO4 ≤500 12 46 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Free cyanide ug/L CN- ≤2.0E2 4 40 100.0% ≥99 Excellent

Average compliance 100.0% ≥99 Excellent

Table 2 – risk-defined 
health-acute 2

Giardia cysts# count/10L ≤1 4 0 100.0% 100 Excellent
Cryptosporidium oocysts# count/10L ≤1 4 0 100.0% 100 Excellent
Enteric viruses: PCR (direct)# count/10L ≤1 4 0 100.0% 100 Excellent

Average compliance 100.0% 100 Excellent

Table 3 – risk-defined 
health-chronic

Chlorine free mg/L ≤5.00 50 1.38 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Monochloramines mg/L ≤3.00 0   ≥97  
Fluoride mg/L F- ≤1.5 51 0.28 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Iron ug/L Fe ≤2 000.0 40 45 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Manganese ug/L Mn ≤400 41 22 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Chromium ug/L Cr ≤50 12 9.2 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Cobalt ug/L Co ≤500 12 9.2 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Copper ug/L Cu ≤2 000 12 9.3 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Lead ug/L Pb ≤10 10 9.0 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Nickel ug/L Ni ≤70 12 10 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Cadmium ug/L Cd ≤3.00 10 2.40 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Uranium# ug/L U ≤30 8 2.8 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Vanadium# ug/L V ≤200 9 5.8 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Arsenic# mg/kg As ≤10 8 5.0 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Antimony# ug/L Sb ≤20 8 5.3 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Barium# ug/L Ba ≤700 0   ≥97  
Boron# ug/L B ≥1 500 to 

≤2 400
0   ≥97  

Selenium# ug/L Se ≤40 8 3.8 100.0% ≥97 Excellent

LABORATORY SERVICES 
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Wallmannsthal final

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Table 1 – risk-defined 
health-acute 1

E. Coli count/100mL ≤1 53 0.08 98.1% ≥99 Good
Nitrate mg/L N ≤11 45 3.1 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Nitrite mg/L N ≤0.90 52 0.11 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Sulphate mg/L SO4 ≤500 12 40 100.0% ≥99 Excellent
Free cyanide ug/L CN- ≤2.0E2 3 37 100.0% ≥99 Excellent

Average compliance 99.6% ≥99 Excellent

Table 2 – risk-defined 
health-acute 2

Giardia cysts# count/10L ≤1 4 0 100.0% 100 Excellent
Cryptosporidium oocysts# count/10L ≤1 4 0 100.0% 100 Excellent
Enteric viruses: PCR (direct)# count/10L ≤1 3 0 100.0% 100 Excellent

Average compliance 100.0% 100 Excellent

Table 3 – risk-defined 
health-chronic

Chlorine free mg/L ≤5.00 50 0.66 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Monochloramines mg/L ≤3.00 0   ≥97  
Fluoride mg/L F- ≤1.5 52 0.27 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Iron ug/L Fe ≤2 000.0 39 139 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Manganese ug/L Mn ≤400 41 33 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Chromium ug/L Cr ≤50 12 9.2 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Cobalt ug/L Co ≤500 12 9.2 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Copper ug/L Cu ≤2000 12 9.6 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Lead ug/L Pb ≤10 9 8.9 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Nickel ug/L Ni ≤70 12 12 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Cadmium ug/L Cd ≤3.00 8 2.64 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Uranium# ug/L U ≤30 8 2.8 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Vanadium# ug/L V ≤200 9 5.6 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Arsenic# mg/kg As ≤10 8 5.0 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Antimony# ug/L Sb ≤20 8 5.3 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Barium# ug/L Ba ≤700 0   ≥97  
Boron# ug/L B ≥1 500 to 

≤2 400
0   ≥97  

Selenium# ug/L Se ≤40 8 3.8 100.0% ≥97 Excellent

Cullinan final

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Table 6 – other determinands

Chlorine total mg/L ≤5.00 1 1.32 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Temperature ºC ≤30 51 22 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Alkalinity total mg/L CaCO3 ≥250 to ≤300 50 127 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Calcium mg/L Ca ≥150 to ≤300 46 29 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Magnesium mg/L Mg ≥70 to ≤100 43 15 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Hardness total mg/L CaCO3 ≥250 to ≤300 40 138 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Calcium precipitation potential mg/L CaCO3 ≥5 to ≤20 42 5 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Potassium mg/L K ≥50 to ≤100 10 7 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
2-Methylisoborneol ng/L ≤10 51 10 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Geosmin ng/L ≤10 51 10 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Pesticides as DDT/DDE ug/L ≤0.50 12 0.0 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Chlorophyll – a ug/L ≥1.0 to ≤2.0 51 0.1 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Orthophosphate mg/L P ≥1.0 to ≤10.0 51 0.33 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Chemical oxygen demand mg/L ≤0.0 0   ≥95  
Total phosphate mg/L P Not detected 0   ≥95  
Free and saline ammonia mg/L N ≤2.0 0   ≥95  
Total suspended solids at 105°C mg/L Not detected 0   ≥95  
Total solids at 105°C  Not detected 0   ≥95  

Average compliance 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
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Wallmannsthal final

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Table 6 – other determinands

Chlorine total mg/L ≤5.00 1 0.73 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Temperature ºC ≤30 52 22 100.0% ≥95 Excellent

Wallmannsthal final

Specifications 
(based on 

SANS
241:2011)

Total 
number of 

samples
Average 

result

% 
compliance 

achieved

% 
compliance 

required

Quality of 
water 

supply 
system

Analysis Units
 Standards 

limits      

Mercury µg/L Hg ≤6.0 11 1.0 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Organic carbon total mg/L C ≤10.0 50 9.37 66.0% ≥97 Unacceptable
Organic carbon dissolved mg/L C ≤10 0   ≥97  
Bromoform mg/L ≤0.100 50 0.00580 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Bromodichloromethane mg/L ≤0.0600 50 0.0128 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Chloroform mg/L ≤0.300 50 0.0369 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Dibromochloromethane mg/L ≤0.100 50 0.00680 100.0% ≥97 Excellent
Microcystin toxins ug/L ≤1.0 51 0.34 96.1% ≥97 Good

Average compliance 98.3% ≥97 Excellent

Table 4 – risk-defined 
health-operational

Total coliform count/100mL ≤10 53 1 98.3% ≥95 Excellent
Total plate count count/1mL ≤1000 53 197 98.4% ≥95 Excellent
Somatic coliphages count/10mL ≤1 12 0.3 95.7% ≥95 Good
pH @ 25°C pH units ≥5.00 to 

≤9.70
52 7.94 100.0% ≥95 Excellent

Turbidity NTU ≤1.00 53 1.02 96.9% ≥95 Good
Aluminium µg/L Al ≤300 12 28 100.0% ≥95 Excellent

Average compliance 98.0% ≥95 Excellent

Table 5 – risk-defined 
health-aesthetic

Electrical conductivity @ 25°C mS/m ≤170.0 52 53.18 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Total dissolved solids at 180°C mg/L ≤1200 50 325 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Turbidity NTU ≤5.00 53 1.02 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Colour mg/L Pt-Co ≤15 51 21 35.3% ≥95 Unacceptable
Chloride mg/L Cl- ≤300 12 58 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Sulphate mg/L SO4 ≤250 12 40 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Ammonium mg/L N ≤1.50 52 0.82 73.1% ≥95 Unacceptable
Iron ug/L Fe ≤300 39 139 97.4% ≥95 Excellent
Manganese ug/L Mn ≤100 41 33 97.6% ≥95 Excellent
Sodium mg/L Na ≤200 9 43 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Zinc mg/L Zn ≤5.0 12 0.04 100.0% ≥95 Excellent
Phenolic compounds ug/L ≤10 0   ≥95  

Average compliance 91.2% ≥95 Unacceptable
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ABRIDGED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Abridged financial performance 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Water sold (KL’000) 81 959 82 357  75 503  79 364  80 651 
Revenue 429 679 383 868  307 695  294 523  272 000 
Cost of sales (293 670) (261 322)  (232 672)  (226 019)  (175 408) 
Gross profit 136 009 122 546  75 023  68 504  96 592 
Other income 25 484 27 667  24 241  24 251  30 879 
Operating expenses (127 163) (115 053)  (99 012)  (92 297)  (91 224) 
Operating (loss)/surplus 34 330 35 160  252  458  36 247 
Net finance income 16 647 26 134  33 890  28 653  25 595 
Net surplus 50 977 61 294  34 142  29 111  61 842 

Abridged financial position 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

ASSETS 1 934 455 1 579 514  969 796  753 991  559 679 
Investments 110 220 193 650  453 442  480 202  420 787 
Loans and receivables  518  812 
Trade and other receivables 231 088 336 315  301 916  107 948  109 170 
Inventories 23 153 22 037  15 938  10 185  11 828 
Cash and cash equivalents 36 412 17 130  39 407  39 830  56 378 

Total assets 2 376 205 2 168 033  1 780 499  1 392 674  1 158 654 

Non-current liabilities 867 517 735 511  649 411  295 368  90 459 
EQUITY 1 243 719 1 192 742  1 131 448  1 097 306  1 068 195 

Total equity and liabilities 2 376 205 2 168 033  1 780 499  1 392 674  1 158 654 
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE R’000

Assets and working capital
Net asset value of property, plant and equipment increased 
by 22% to R1 934 billion from R1 579 billion reported in the 
prior financial year. This increase is attributed to robust capital 
expansion projects that resulted in sizeable increase in the income 
producing assets. Current assets decreased by R168 million 
primarily due to decreased investments (financial assets) and 
debtors when current liabilities increased by R24 million due to an 
increase in creditors. A positive net working capital of R135 million 
is therefore reported and has decreased from R329 million. 
Magalies Water is in a position to meet its short term obligations 
and a decrease of R194 million is a reflection of good working 
capital management. 

Capital expenditure
Capital expenditure of R395 million was made during the 2015/16 
financial year compared to R550 million of the prior financial 
year. There was a relentless focus on management of capital 
expenditure against the backdrop of scarcity of financial resources 
and some of the capital expansion projects had to be curtailed. 
Capital expansion projects were therefore implemented within the 
confines of scarce financial resources in terms of their priority. 

Cash flows
The cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the financial year is 
R36 million and is a 113% increase compared to the prior financial 
year. Positive cash was generated from operations, when there 
was a net cash outflow of R331 million from investing activities 
due to acquisition of income producing assets. A net cash inflow 
of R133 million from financing activities is reported due to 
Infrastructure Grants received from the National Government to 
implement capital expansions. 

Tariff management
Tariffs for the 2015/16 financial year were determined in 
consultation with Municipal Customers and Stakeholders at the 
inter-Governmental level. Magalies Water adopted a scheme 
based tariff methodology thus all the economic variables having 
an impact on the cost drivers of each bulk water scheme were 
taken into account. 

The following scheme based tariffs and associated increases were 
implemented for the previous five years:
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Percentage increase

R0

R1

R2

R3

R4

R5

20162015201420132012
0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

R3.20

15%
R3.49

9%
8%

14%

10%

R3.77

R4.19

R4.73

SCHEME-BASED TARIFFS – VAALKOP

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Revenue of R429 million was generated from water sales and is an 
increase by 12% as compared to the R383 million reported in the 
previous financial year. A 12% increase in revenue is attributable 
to tariff increases as sales volumes decreased by 0.48% compared 
to the prior financial year. 
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REVENUE

The cost of producing water also increased by 12% and this 
is attributable to increases in the prices of input production 
commodities such as electricity, chemicals and raw water. 
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COST OF SALES R’000

A strong financial performance is reported as Magalies Water 
profitably traded notwithstanding the constrained sales volumes 
growth. Operating profit of R34 million is reported and this is 
a decrease of 3% compared to the R35 million reported in the 
previous financial year. This is reflective of the ability of Magalies 
Water to generate cash and profits from its own operations. Cost 
containment measures were implemented and efficiencies were 
also harvested at the operational level to avoid a potential of 
costs outstripping revenue. A total comprehensive income to an 
amount of R50 million is reported, albeit a decrease of 17% from 
the R61 million reported in the prior financial year.
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NET SURPLUS R’000

Net finance income
R16 million was earned as finance income and is a decrease of 
42% compared to R26 million earned in the prior financial year. 
Finance income was earned from a lower capital base as a portion 
of investments were retired to fund capital expansion projects. 
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Average tariff

Percentage increase
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SCHEME-BASED TARIFFS – KLIPDRIFT

Average tariff

Percentage increase
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SCHEME-BASED TARIFFS – WALLMANNSTHAL

Average tariff

Percentage increase
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SCHEME-BASED TARIFFS – CULLINAN

Customers did not raise objections to the above tariffs and the 
associated increases.
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The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to the Board:
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The Audit Committee is pleased to present its report for the financial year ended 30 June 2016. The Committee is an Independent 
Statutory Committee appointed by the Board in compliance with the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 and the National 
Treasury Regulations. This report covers all the activities for the reporting period.

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 51 of the PFMA and as well as provisions of 
Treasury Regulation 27.1.

The Audit Committee also reports that it has reviewed its Audit Committee charter, and that it has regulated its affairs in compliance with 
this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

We have assisted the Board in fulfilling its oversight role by reviewing the financial reporting processes, internal controls, the audit 
processes including processes for monitoring compliance with accounting policies, legislation and applicable regulations.

COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS
The Audit Committee consists of six independent non-executive members of which three are members of the Board. 

The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Outsourced Internal Audit Head, the Auditor General, Strategy Manager and the Risk Manager 
attend Committee meetings by invitation only. During the year under review five (5) meetings were held.

Member Attendance

Ms TF Zondi^ 5 out of 5

Ms N Mufamadi^ 5 out of 5

Mr N Maepa^ 5 out of 5

Ms M Ramataboe* 3 out of 5

Mr N Baloyi* 4 out of 5

Mr S Mamotheti* 4 out of 5

^ Independent Non Executive Board Member
* Independent external Audit Committee Member 

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
The system of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital 
are efficiently managed. In line with PFMA and the King III report on corporate governance requirements, internal audit provides the 
committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk 
management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. From 
the various reports of the internal auditors, the audit report on the annual financial statements, and the management letter of the auditor 
general, it was noted that during the period under review, there is continuous improvement in the general internal control systems within 
Magalies Water. 

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Committee has reviewed the responses and undertakings by Management to mitigate against the identified control weakness and is 
satisfied of the proposed actions for the next financial year.  Management committed to resolve issues relating to Performance Information, 
and deviations from Supply Chain Management processes to prevent recurrence of irregular expenditure.

THE QUALITY OF MANAGEMENT QUARTERLY REPORTS SUBMITTED IN TERMS OF THE PFMA
Quarterly reports on performance information and Magalies Water’s finances were presented and reported in committee meetings and 
were monitored throughout the year. The committee is satisfied with the content and quality of quarterly reports prepared and issued by 
the accounting authority of Magalies Water in the year under review.

EVALUATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The committee has:
• reviewed and discussed the draft annual financial statements to be included in the annual report, with the auditor general and the 

accounting authority;
• reviewed and discussed the performance information with management;
• reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices;
• noted that no significant adjustment resulting from the audit;
• reviewed the entities compliance with legal and regulatory provisions; and 

The Committee concurs with and accepts the Auditor General’s report of the annual financial statements. 

INTERNAL AUDIT
The internal audit plan was approved during the financial year and we are satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively.  
We are also satisfied that internal audit has addressed the risks pertinent to the Water Board in the audits undertaken during the period 
under review.  

EXTERNAL AUDIT
We have met with the Auditor General South Africa to ensure that there were no unresolved issues and we concur with the issues raised by 
them in their report.

Ms TF Zondi
Chairperson of the Audit Committee

20 October 2016
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Introduction
1. I audited the financial statements of the Magalies Water set out on pages 87 to 112 which comprise the statement of financial position 

as at 30 June 2016, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements
2. The accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 
(Act No 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with 

the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Magalies Water as at 30 June 2016 

and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the IFRS and the requirements of the PFMA.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
7. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No 25 of 2004) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, 

I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives of selected 
objectives presented in the annual performance report, compliance with legislation and internal control. The objective of my tests was 
to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. 
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives
8. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information of the 

following selected objectives presented in the annual performance report of the entity for the year ended 30 June 2016:
• Objective 1: To provide sustainable water services to bulk customers
• Objective 3: To manage customer relations

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT  
ON MAGALIES WATER 

• Objective 5: To provide quality potable water
• Objective 7: To ensure business growth
• Objective 17: To efficiently and effectively conduction Section 30 business
• Objective 20: To contribute to an affordance tariff by managing production costs
• Objective 26: To contribute to the conservation of the natural environment
• Objective 29: To improve the competency levels of staff and maintain staff retention
• Objective 32: To contribute towards Government transformation and empowerment trajectory

I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in accordance with the 
National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with the planned objectives. 
I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound 
and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

9. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

10. The material findings in respect of the selected objectives are as follows:

Strategic Objective 7: To ensure business growth – 33% of targets were not consistent
11. Treasury regulation 29.1.1(a) requires that the corporate plan inclusive of the shareholders compact with strategic objective are agreed 

upon with the executive authority. A total of 33% targets were not consistent with the approved shareholders compact included in the 
approved corporate plan.

12. Treasury regulation 29.2.2 requires that the executive authority approve the shareholders compact. Material changes were made to 
33% of targets reported in the annual performance report without the necessary approval.

Strategic Objective 17: To efficiently and effectively conduction Section 30 business – 33% targets 
were not consistent
13. Treasury regulation 29.1.1(a) requires that the corporate plan inclusive of the shareholders compact with strategic objective are agreed 

upon with the executive authority. A total of 33% targets were not consistent with the approved shareholders compact included in the 
approved corporate plan.

14. Treasury regulation 29.2.2 requires that the executive authority approve the shareholders compact. Material changes were made to 
33% of targets reported in the annual performance report without the necessary approval.

Strategic Objective 20: To contribute to an affordable tariff by managing production costs – 100% of 
targets were not consistent
15. Treasury regulation 29.1.1(a) requires that the corporate plan inclusive of the shareholders compact with strategic objective are agreed 

upon with the executive authority. A total of 100% targets were not consistent with the approved shareholders compact included in 
the approved corporate plan.

16. Treasury regulation 29.2.2 requires that the executive authority approves the shareholders compact. Material changes were made to 
100% of targets reported in the annual performance report without the necessary approval.
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Strategic Objective 29: To improve the competency levels of staff and maintain staff retention.
Usefulness of reported performance information
17. The FMPPI requires that performance targets should be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level of performance. A total 

of 33% targets were not specific due to a lack of adequate communication between the different role players affecting those indicators.

Strategic Objective 32: To contribute towards Government transformation and empowerment 
trajectory
Usefulness of reported performance information
18. Treasury regulation 29.1.1(a) requires that the corporate plan inclusive of a shareholders compact with strategic objective are agreed 

upon with executive authority. A total of 25% of indicators and 75% of targets were not consistent with those in the approved 
corporate plan.

19. Treasury regulation 29.2.2 requires that the executive authority to approve the shareholders compact. Material changes were made to 
25% of indicators and 75% of targets reported in the annual performance report without the necessary approval.

20. The FMPPI requires that performance targets should be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required levels of performance. A total 
of 25% targets were not specific due to a lack of adequate communication between the different role players affecting this indicator.

Usefulness of reported performance information
21. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness of the reported performance information of the following strategic objectives

• Strategic Objective 1: To provide sustainable water services to bulk customers
• Strategic Objective 3: To manage customer relations
• Strategic Objective 5: To provide quality potable water
• Strategic Objective 26: To contribute to the conservation of the natural environment

Reliability of reported performance information
22. I did not raise any material findings on the reliability of the reported performance information for all the strategic objectives as listed in 

paragraph 8 of this report.

Additional Matters
23. I draw attention of the following matters. My conclusion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Achievement of planned targets
24. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 28 to 35 for information on the achievement of the planned targets for the year. This 

information should be considered in the context of the material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information in paragraphs 11 to 22 of this report.

Adjustment of material misstatements
25. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing on the reported performance information 

on five out of nine objectives reported upon. As management subsequently corrected all the misstatements, I did not raise any material 
finding on reliability of the reported performance.

Compliance with legislation
26. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding financial matters, financial 

management and other related matters. My material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the 
general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT  
ON MAGALIES WATER (CONTINUED)

Procurement and contract management
27. Invitations for competitive bidding were not advertised for a minimum period as prescribed in the supply chain management policy.

Expenditure management
28. Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure of R66 million as disclosed in note 28 of the financial statements, in 

contravention of Section 38(1)©(ii) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 9.1.1.

INTERNAL CONTROL
29. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, performance report and compliance with legislation. 

The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the performance 
report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.

Leadership
30. Management should ensure a sufficient – capacitated and competent – supply chain management unit so that proper review and 

monitoring can take place to reduce any irregular expenditure.

31. Management should ensure that sufficient oversight takes place to ensure that approval from the executive authority is obtained for 
changes to the performance indicators.

Financial and performance management
32. Other sources of documentation and information was not included as part of the technical indicator descriptions to allow for 

unambiguous definitions.

33. Inadequate filing system within the supply chain management unit and strategy management so that documents can be retrieved at 
any given moment.

Other reports
34. I draw attention to the following engagements that could potentially impact on the entity’s financial, performance and compliance 

related matters. My opinion is not modified in respect of these engagements that are either in progress or have been completed.

Performance audit
35. There is a performance audit on the entity’s programmes and water sales volumes currently being undertaken by the entity and the 

audit is still on-going.

Pretoria

19 October 2016
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The Board is required in terms of the Water Services Act No 108 of 1997 and the Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 1991 
(as amended) to maintain adequate accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements 
and related financial information included in this report. It is the Board’s responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present 
the state of affairs of the entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then 
ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent 
opinion on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are based upon 
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Board acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the entity and place 
considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. In order to meet these responsibilities, the Board sets standards 
for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of 
responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an 
acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical 
standards in ensuring the entity’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus 
of risk management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. While 
operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems 
and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Board is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control provides 
reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial statements. However, any system of 
internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2017 and, in the light of this review and the current financial 
position, they are satisfied that the entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 87 to 112, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the 
Board on 30 September 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

        
Adv MM Petlane         LC Mohalaba
Chairperson of the Board       Chief Executive (Acting)

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  
AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

2016 2015
Note(s) R’000 R’000

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1 934 455 1 579 514
Intangible assets 4 40 877 19 387

1 975 332 1 598 901

Current assets
Financial assets 5 110 220 193 650
Inventories 7 23 153 22 037
Trade and other receivables 8 231 088 336 315
Cash and cash equivalents 9 36 412 17 130

400 873 569 132

Total assets 2 376 205 2 168 033

Equity and liabilities
EQUITY
Retained income 1 243 719 1 192 742

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income 10 126 730 130 036
Capital contributions 11 93 884 93 884
Government grant 12 646 903 511 590

867 517 735 510

Current liabilities
Deferred income 10 3 306 3 306
Government grant 12 3 212 1 903
Operating lease liability 13 53 4
Trade and other payables 14 258 398 234 568

264 969 239 781

Total liabilities 1 132 486 975 291

Total equity and liabilities 2 376 205 2 168 033
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Note(s)
2016 

R’000
2015 

R’000

Revenue 15 429 679 383 868
Cost of sales 16 (293 670) (261 322)

Gross profit 136 009 122 546
Other income 17 25 484 27 667
Operating expenses (127 163) (115 053)

Operating profit 18 34 330 35 160
Finance income 19 16 651 26 134
Finance costs 20 (4) –

Profit for the year 50 977 61 294
Total comprehensive income for the year 50 977 61 294

Retained income 
R’000

Total equity 
R’000

1 131 448 1 131 448

Profit for the year 61 294 61 294
Other comprehensive income – –
Total comprehensive income for the year 61 294 61 294

Balance at 1 July 2015 1 192 742 1 192 742

Profit for the year 50 977 50 977
Other comprehensive income – –

Total comprehensive income for the year 50 977 50 977

Balance at 30 June 2016 1 243 719 1 243 719
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Note(s)
2016 

R’000
2015 

R’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 21 200 505 104 108
Finance Income 16 651 26 134
Finance costs (4) –

Net cash from operating activities 217 152 130 242

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (390 156) (643 269)
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 3 5 14
Purchase of other intangible assets 4 (24 465) (18 637)
Movement in other financial assets 83 430 259 792

Net cash from investing activities (331 186) (402 100)

Cash flows from financing activities
Movement in deferred government grant 136 622 252 887
Movement in deferred income (3 306) (3 306)

Net cash from financing activities 133 316 249 581

Total cash movement for the year 19 282 (22 277)
Cash at the beginning of the year 17 130 39 407

Total cash at end of the year 9 36 412 17 130

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION
Magalies Water is a Water Board established in terms of Section 28 of the Water Services Act, (Act No 108 of 1997) and Public Entity 
as per Schedule 3B of the Public Finance Management Act (Act No 1 of 1999), as amended. The address of its registered office, 
principal place of business and principal activities of the entity are described in the Accounting Authority’s report.

(a) Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
interpretations of those standards and the Public Finance Management Act of 1999 as amended. In terms of Section 79 of 
the PFMA, the National Treasury issued the entity with the approval authorising the use of IFRS as the accounting reporting 
framework.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, and incorporate the principal accounting policies 
set out below.

(c) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in South African Rands, which is the entity’s functional currency. All information 
presented has been presented to the nearest thousand Rands.

These accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the previous period.

1.1 Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 
estimates. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. Management has made the following significant 
judgments that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables

The entity assesses its trade receivables and other receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. 
In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the entity makes judgements as to whether 
there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

The entity considers evidence of impairment at two levels, specific asset and collective level. All individually significant 
receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be specifically impaired are 
then collectively assessed with receivables that are not individually significant. In assessing collective impairment, the entity 
uses historical trends of the probability of default and timing of recoveries.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its 
carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected against receivables. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease is reversed through profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
1.1 Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock

Obsolete, slow moving and redundant stock items are identified and written off in profit/loss.

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment as well as useful lives of intangibles are reviewed at each 
reporting date. The useful lives are estimated by management based on historical analysis and other available information. 
The residual values are estimated based on useful lives as well as other available information.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Land is not 
depreciated.

Costs include expenditure incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and expenditure 
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an 
item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 
residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Average useful life

Buildings 40 – 45 years
Pipelines and reservoirs 45 – 65 years
Plant and machinery 18 – 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 6 – 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 – 10 years
Office equipment 3 – 10 years
IT equipment 3 – 10 years
Laboratory equipment 5 – 10 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. If the 
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset is 
depreciated separately. The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included 
in profit or loss.

Assets under construction are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment loss. Costs include the cost of materials, direct 
labour costs, professional fees, direct project overheads and any costs which are directly attributable to bringing the asset to 
its present location and condition.

1.3 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the expected economic benefits that are attributable to the asset 
will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring into use the specific software. 
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs and acquisition of licences are recognised as an expense 
when they are incurred.

Servitudes are rights granted to Magalies Water for an indefinite period of time. The life of the servitude will remain in force 
as long as the relevant infrastructure is still in use. A servitude will only become impaired if the infrastructure to which the 
servitude is linked is derecognised.

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets 
unless such lives are indefinite.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Item Useful life

Computer software 3 – 5 years
Servitudes Indefinite

1.4 Impairment of assets
The entity assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful 
life. The impairment test is performed during the annual period and at the same time every period.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

1.5 Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost, determined on the weighted average cost basis, and net realisable value. Net 
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories held by the entity comprise of water, chemicals, maintenance 
spares and consumables.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
1.6 Financial instruments

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:

• Loans and receivables

• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained/incurred and takes place at initial 
recognition. The entity classifies the financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, 
a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Classification is 
re-assessed on an annual basis.

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not 
determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated 
impairment losses.

The entity classifies financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been 
transferred and the entity has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date the entity assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.

For amounts due to the entity, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy 
and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss 
within operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance account. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables and loans receivables

Trade and other receivables and loans receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses. A provision for impairment of 
trade receivables is recognised when there is objective evidence that the entity will not be able to recover the amount due. 

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, 
and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable 
is impaired.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is 
recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against 
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against 
operating expenses in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and bank balances and are initially measured at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of 
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period.

1.7 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered) are recognised in the 
period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their 
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of performance bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive 
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Defined contribution plan

The entity contributes towards Magalies Water Retirement Fund and the fund is registered and controlled in terms of the 
Pensions Fund Act 24 of 1956. The entity is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.

1.8 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. All other 
leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating leases – lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between 
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
1.9 Revenue

The entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the entity. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of 
discounts and value added taxation (VAT). Revenue from sale of goods and services is recognised as follows:

• Revenue from sale of water is recognised when significant risks and rewards are passed to the customer.

• Revenue from services is recognised in the period in which the services are rendered.

• Management fees are recognised in the period in which the services are rendered in accordance with the substance of the 
relevant agreements.

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.

1.10 Cost of sales
Cost of sales includes the cost of raw water, chemicals, electricity and all other direct operating costs associated with the 
production of water.

1.11 Government grant
Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received 
and that the entity will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. The grant is related to the construction of an 
asset and has been presented in the statement of financial position by setting up the grant as deferred income. The grant will 
be recognised as revenue on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset when it is brought into use.

1.12 Transfer of assets from customers
Transferred assets from customers are measured on initial recognition at fair value. The corresponding amount is recognised 
as deferred income. Revenue is recognised on a systematic basis over the useful life of the assets.

1.13 Capital contributions
The contributions are recognised as revenue on a systematic basis over the useful life of the assets when the assets are 
brought into use.

1.14 Related Parties
Magalies Water is a state controlled entity and has related party relationships with all other entities within the sphere of 
government. Unless otherwise disclosed, all transactions with related parties are on arm’s length basis at market related 
prices.

1.15 Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose events will only be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Contingent assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 25.

1.16 Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure incurred and identified during the current financial period and which has been condoned before year 
end and/or before the finalisation of the financial statements is recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the year that the expenditure is 
incurred. When the expenditure is recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as income in the income statement.

1.17 Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the entity intends either to settle or a net basis, or to realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
2.1 Standards and interpretations that are not yet effective

The entity has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are 
mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2016 or later periods:

Standard/Interpretation
Effective date: Years 
beginning on or after Expected impact

IFRS 5: Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations 1 January 2016 Impact is currently being assessed

IFRS 7: Financial Instruments Disclosures – Annual 
Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016 Impact is currently being assessed

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments: A final version of IFRS 9 has 
been issued which replaces IAS 39: Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 Impact is currently being assessed

IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016 Impact is currently being assessed

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts from Customers 1 January 2018 Unlikely there will be a material impact

IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements: 
Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016 Unlikely there will be a material impact

IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment – Amendment 
to the principle of depreciation 1 January 2016 Impact is currently being assessed

IAS 38: Intangible Assets – Amendment to the principle 
of amortisation 1 January 2016 Impact is currently being assessed

IAS 19: Employee Benefits – Annual Improvements 
2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016 Impact is currently being assessed

IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows 1 January 2017 Unlikely there will be a material impact

IFRS: 16 Leases 1 January 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2016 2015

Cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value Cost

Accumulated 
depreciation 

Carrying 
value

Land 4 564 – 4 564 4 564 – 4 564
Buildings 146 103 (59 712) 86 391 106 776 (56 548) 50 228
Plant and machinery 235 357 (97 825) 137 532 198 694 (87 020) 111 674
Furniture and fixtures 6 353 (3 856) 2 497 5 880 (3 472) 2 408
Motor vehicles 23 926 (19 258) 4 668 20 365 (18 504) 1 861
IT equipment 16 765 (9 007) 7 758 15 697 (7 506) 8 191
Pipelines and reservoirs 891 049 (317 792) 573 257 861 166 (299 184) 561 982
Capital work in progress 1 117 788 – 1 117 788 838 606 – 838 606

Total 2 441 905 (507 450) 1 934 455 2 051 748 (472 234) 1 579 514

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – 2016

Opening 
balance Additions Transfers Depreciation Total

Land 4 564 – – – 4 564
Buildings 50 228 683 38 644 (3 165) 86 390
Plant and machinery 111 674 8 229 28 434 (10 805) 137 532
Furniture and fixtures 2 408 473 – (383) 2 498
Motor vehicles 1 861 3 561 – (753) 4 669
IT equipment 8 191 969 98 (1 501) 7 757
Pipelines and reservoirs 561 982 – 29 883 (18 608) 573 257
Capital work in progress 838 606 376 241 (97 059) – 1 117 788

1 579 514 390 156 – (35 215) 1 934 455

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – 2015

Opening 
balance Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Land 4 564 – – – 4 564
Buildings 50 817 1 826 – (2 415) 50 228
Plant and machinery 66 362 53 461 – (8 149) 111 674
Furniture and fixtures 1 551 1 339 – (482) 2 408
Motor vehicles 3 089 59 – (1 287) 1 861
IT equipment 3 220 6 000 (10) (1 019) 8 191
Pipelines and reservoirs 535 725 44 825 – (18 568) 561 982
Capital work in progress 302 847 535 759 – – 838 606

968 175 643 269 (10) (31 920) 1 579 514

Compensation received for losses on property, plant and equipment – included in operating profit

2016
R’000

2015
R’000

IT equipment – 16

Other information
Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use – 8 243

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2016 2015

Cost
Accumulated 
amortisation 

Carrying 
value Cost

Accumulated 
amortisation 

Carrying 
value

Computer software 49 786 (9 678) 40 108 25 523 (6 703) 18 820
Servitudes 769 – 769 567 – 567

Total 50 555 (9 678) 40 877 26 090 (6 703) 19 387

Opening
 balance Additions Amortisation Total

Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2016
Computer software 18 820 24 263 (2 975) 40 108
Servitudes 567 202 – 769

19 387 24 465 (2 975) 40 877

Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2015
Computer software 1 234 18 637 (1 051) 18 820
Servitudes 567 – – 567

1 801 18 637 (1 051) 19 387

5. FINANCIAL ASSETS
2016

R’000
2015

R’000

Loans and receivables – current portion
Loans and receivables consist of short-term deposits held with various financial institutions
The carrying amount approximates the fair value of the financial assets. 110 220 193 650

Current assets
At amortised cost – loans and receivables 110 220 193 650
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6.  FINANCIAL ASSETS BY CATEGORY
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Loans and
 receivables Total

2016
110 220 110 220

Short-term investments 36 412 36 412
Cash and cash equivalents 231 088 231 088

Trade and other receivables 377 720 377 720

2015
19 614 19 614

Sanlam 174 036 174 036
Short-term investments 17 130 17 130
Cash and cash equivalents 336 315 336 315

Trade and other receivables 547 095 547 095

2016
 R’000

2015 
R’000

7. INVENTORIES
Water inventory 1 333 1 110
Spares, consumables etc 17 178 18 656
Chemicals 4 674 2 303

23 185 22 069
(32) (32)

Inventories (write-downs) 23 153 22 037

7.1 Inventory schedule
Water inventory 1 333 1 110
Chemicals 4 674 2 303
Spares, consumables etc 17 178 18 656

23 185 22 069

2016
 R’000

2015 
R’000

8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
221 963 309 849

Trade receivables (11 559) (8 793)
Impairment of receivables 1 552 4 319
Prepayments 1 979 1 553
Deposits VAT 10 915 25 308
Sundry debtors 6 238 4 079

231 088 336 315

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables and are carried at amortised cost and the carrying amount 
approximates the fair value. Trade debtors are granted credit terms of 30 days from the date of invoice to settle outstanding debts.

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade and other receivables which are 30 days and 60 days past due are not considered to be impaired. At 30 June 2016, 
R19 631 000 – (2015: R10 840 000) were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000

30 days 13 426 9 507
60 days 6 205 1 333

Trade and other receivables impaired
As of 30 June 2016, trade and other receivables were assessed for impairment and the 
allowance for impairment has been provided for.

The amount of the provision is R11 558 750 as of 30 June 2016 (2015: R8 793 100).

The ageing of these receivables is as follows:
Three to six months 23 861 5 775
Over six months 46 783 38 773

Reconciliation of impairment loss of trade and other receivables
Opening balance 8 793 8 048
(Reversal of impairment)/Impairment loss 3 449 1 287
Amounts written off as uncollectable (684) (542)

11 558 8 793
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2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand 9 10
Bank balances 36 403 17 120

36 412 17 130

10. DEFERRED INCOME
Deferred income consist of assets transferred by the mines to Magalies Water. These assets 
consist of pipelines and reservoir constructed by Platinum Mine in line with the off take 
agreement that was signed in 2008. These assets were transferred in 2012/13 financial year.

Non-current liabilities 126 730 130 036
Current liabilities 3 306 3 306

130 036 133 342

Transferred assets from customers are measured on initial recognition at fair value. The corresponding amount is recognised as 
deferred income. Revenue is recognised on a systematic basis over the useful life of the assets.

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000

11. CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital contributions consist primarily contributions received from the Department of 
Public Works (R23.4 million), Maseve Investments (R35.2 million) and Bakubung Minerals 
(R35.2 million). These contributions benefit specific projects.

The contributions are recognised as revenue when the assets are brought into use over the 
useful life of the assets.

Capital contributions
Non-current portion 93 884 93 884

12. GOVERNMENT GRANT
Government grant consists primarily of the grant received from the Department of Water and 
Sanitation for the construction of the Pilanesberg Scheme and Klipdrift Upgrade. The grant will 
be recognised as revenue when the asset is brought into use over the useful life of the asset. 
Phase 1 of the Pilanesberg Scheme and the Klipdrift Contract 1 and 2 have been completed, 
and a portion of deferred income is recognised as revenue over the useful life of the asset.

Department of Water and Sanitation
Non-current portion 646 903 511 590
Current portion 3 212 1 903

650 115 513 493

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000

13. OPERATING LEASE
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for premises and office 
equipment. Leases are negotiated for an average term of three years. Rentals for premises 
escalate on an annual basis at 10%. Rentals for office equipment are fixed for three years. 
The contracts expired on 30 June 2016.

Lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease smoothing
Operating lease accrual 53 4

14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables and accruals 148 966 165 147
Amounts received in advance 29 475 2 956
Retentions 57 569 47 499
Accrual for bonuses 14 362 10 711
Deposits received 605 603
Accrual for leave pay 7 387 7 591
Unknown deposits 34 61

258 398 234 568

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost and the carrying amount approximates 
fair value. Trade payables are normally settled within 30 days from the date of receipt of invoice.

15. REVENUE
Sale of Water 429 679 383 868

16. COST OF SALES
Cost of sales is made up as follows:
Raw water purchases 77 527 73 452
Chemicals 32 885 22 510
Direct employee costs 52 992 46 161
Electricity 84 119 73 966
Depreciation 29 413 26 717
Other production overheads 16 734 18 516

293 670 261 322

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016



10 4 105Annual Report 2015/16 Magalies Water 

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000

17. OTHER INCOME
Profit and loss on sale of assets 5 4
Management fees 16 006 20 321
Tender fees 371 338
Deferred income 6 221 4 099
Lab analysis 839 1 105
Cost recovery income 1 584 1 311
Sundry income 458 489

25 484 27 667

18. OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Other income
Deferred income 6 221 4 099
Management fees 16 006 20 321

22 227 24 420

Operating lease charges
Premises
•  Contractual amounts – 30
•  Contractual amounts 1 610 979

1 610 1 009

Consulting fees 9 111 13 057
Amortisation on intangible assets 2 975 1 051
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock 32 32
Inventory recognised as an expense 2 730 11 501
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 35 215 31 933
Employee costs 119 634 101 873

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000

19. FINANCE INCOME
Interest earned on:
Investments 9 464 20 578
Banks 1 431 1 238
Interest charged on trade and other receivables 5 756 4 318

16 651 26 134

20. FINANCE COSTS
Trade and other payables 4 –

21. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation 50 977 61 294
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, amortisation 38 190 32 971
Profit/loss on sale of assets (5) (4)
Interest received – investment (16 651) (26 134)
Finance costs 4 –
Operating lease accrual 49 (373)
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (1 116) (6 099)
Trade and other receivables 105 227 (34 399)
Trade and other payables 23 830 76 852

200 505 104 108

22. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Fees 2 358 2 053
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23. EMOLUMENTS
Board

Expenses
Committees 

fees Total

2016
Adv MM Petlane (Chairperson) 129 680 809
Ms PN Nkwinika (Deputy Chairperson) 84 397 481
Ms M Hlahla 39 282 321
Mr DR Sibanda 43 309 352
Ms TF Zondi 31 315 346
Ms TD Monewe 33 274 307
Mr TT Mohapi 81 291 372
Ms F Saloojee 27 246 273
Mr FP Vilakazi 61 421 482
Ms MM Mufamadi 17 245 262
Mr SV Suping 73 272 345
Ms MS Ratlhagane 67 281 348
Mr AN Maepa 15 239 254

700 4 252 4 952

2015
Adv MM Petlane (Chairperson) 93 577 670
Ms PN Nkwinika (Deputy Chairperson) 82 486 568
Ms M Hlahla 27 274 301
Mr DR Sibanda 62 308 370
Ms TF Zondi 28 259 287
Ms TD Monewe 28 260 288
Mr TT Mohapi 82 281 363
Ms F. Saloojee 24 270 294
Mr FP Vilakazi 52 325 377
Ms MM Mufamadi 40 275 315
Kgosi SV Suping 51 194 245
Ms MS Ratlhagane 51 245 296
Mr AN Maepa 7 164 171

627 3 918 4 545

Executive management 

2016 Salaries
Acting

allowance Expenses
Performance

 bonus
Other 

expenses# Total

Mr OM Dlamini – Chief Executive* 364 – 11 – 284 659
Mr C Mohalaba – Acting Chief 
Executive 1 238 129 163 210 – 1 740
Ms A Raphela – GM Finance† 885 – 77 498 164 1 624
Mr S Mkhize – Chief Operating Officer£ 1 354 – 209 – – 1 563
Mr R Le Roux – GM Engineering 
Services 1 421 – 64 512 2 1 999
Mr J Ndala – Acting GM Corporate 
Services 835 90 74 – – 999
Mr M Mehlo – Acting GM Engineering 
Services~ 873 106 74 68 – 1 121
Ms T Radebe – GM PMUø 180 – 93 – – 273
Ms N Sondlo – Acting GM Finance – 474 – – – 474
Ms L Morake – Acting GM Water 
Services – 26 – – – 26

7 150 825 765 1 288 450 10 478

* The term for the Chief Executive expired on 4 September 2015.
† The GM Finance resigned on 31 January 2016.
£ Mr S Mkhize served as GM Water Service until 31 March 2016 when he was appointed as a Chief Operating Officer.
~ Mr M Mehlo was appointed as GM Engineering Services with effect from 1 June 2016.
ø Ms T Radebe was appointed GM Project Management Unit with effect from 1 May 2016.
# Other expenses comprise leave pay out and long service award.

2015 Salaries
Acting

 allowance Expenses
Performance 

bonus Total

Mr OM Dlamini – Chief Executive 1 668 – 145 321 2 134
Ms R Raphela – GM Finance 1 373 – 111 266 1 750
Mr R Le Roux – GM Engineering Services 1 438 – 81 274 1 793
Mr S Mkhize – GM Water Services 845 – 203 – 1 048
Mr CL Mohalaba – GM Corporate Services 1 187 – 88 225 1 500
Mr J Ndala – Acting GM Corporate Services – 34 – – 34

6 511 34 628 1 086 8 259
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2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000

24. COMMITMENTS
Capital Commitments
Already contracted but not provided for
Property, plant and equipment 284 138 406 545

The committed capital expenditure will be financed through existing cash resources and 
capital contributions.
Operating lease commitments
Minimum lease payments due
– within one year 516 759
– in second to fifth year inclusive 198 366

714 1 125

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for office equipment and premises. Leases are negotiated for an 
average term of three years. Rentals for premises escalate on an annual basis at 10%. Rentals for office equipment are fixed for 
three years. The lease agreements expired on 30 June 2016. No contingent rent is payable.

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Guarantees of R512 378 were issued by Standard Bank in respect of payments to Eskom.

Legal proceedings have been instituted against Magalies Water by ex-employees. The entity’s legal advisors have advised that 
Magalies Water has reasonable defence and the probability of loss is minimal. There are currently no estimates on legal fees and 
no provision has been made in the financial statements.

26. RELATED PARTIES
Relationships

Ultimate holding company National Government

Shareholder Minister of Water and Sanitation

The entity has elected to adopt the provisions of IAS 24 that provides the entity an exemption from disclosure requirements for 
related party transactions and outstanding balances with other government related entities.

The Board and Executive Management are considered as key management and there were no related party transactions between 
the entity and key management during the year under review.

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000

Related party balances

Amounts included in trade payables
Department of Water and Sanitation 25 472 18 618

Amounts included in trade receivables
Rand Water 13 481 13 708
Department of Water and Sanitation 65 173 191 418

Amounts included in government grant
Department of Water and Sanitation 651 079 516 798

Amounts included in capital contributions
Department of Public Works 23 484 23 484

Amounts included in cost of sales
Department of Water and Sanitation 71 797 68 676

Amounts included in revenue
Rand Water 128 928 117 504

Compensation to the Board and Executive Management
Short-term employee benefits 15 430 12 804

27. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution plan
Magalies Water contributes towards Magalies Water Retirement Fund. This fund is registered 
and controlled in terms of the Pensions Fund Act 24 of 1956.
Employees make a 7.5% contribution and the employer contributes 10%. The entity is under 
no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.
The total contribution to the Fund 12 965 11 292

28. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
Irregular expenditure
Opening balance – 1 July 38 671 58 971
Irregular expenditure related to capital expenditure 63 094 41 928
Irregular expenditure related to procurement policy 3 039 7 701

104 804 108 600
Expenditure condoned during the year (104 659) (69 929)

145 38 671
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28. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
Details of the opening balance are as follows:

Irregular expenditure reported in the previous years but not condoned – R35 million

(a) Non-compliance with Delegations of Authority – R25.4 million
Irregular expenditure amounting to R25.4 million was incurred in 2014/15 financial year and relates to services rendered and 
paid over and above the original contract value without following proper delegations of authority. The circumstances under 
which the transaction occured have been investigated and the employees implicated have resigned from the entity.

(b) Non-compliance with Preferential Procurement Regulations Section 4 – R3.5 million
The irregular expenditure of R3.5 million relates to irregular expenditure reported in 2014/15 which was not condoned. 
This comprise of various transactions on procurement of goods and services without following proper procurement policy. 
The employees who transgressed the policy have been subjected to disciplinary process.

Details of the current movement are as follows:

Non-compliance with procurement policy – R3 million
The irregular expenditure of R3 million relates various transactions on procurement of goods and services without following proper 
procurement policy. The employees who transgressed the policies have been subjected to disciplinary process.

CIDB regulation not complied with in awarding the contract – R3.4 million
This relates to the contract that was evaluated in three phases (ie Phase 1, Phase 2A, Phase 2B) and was awarded as one contract 
in 2013/14. It was determined that the bidder did not qualify to be awarded the contract for Phase 2A in terms of CIDB regulation. 
The amount incurred in 2015/16 financial year is R3.4 million.

Non-compliance with Delegations of Authority – R9 million
Irregular expenditure was reported in 2014/15 and an amount of R9 million was incurred in the current financial year. Refer to (a) above.

Non-compliance with Preferential Procurement Regulations Section 4 – R50.5 million
The irregular expenditure was identified and reported in 2014/15 financial year. An amount of R50.5 million has been incurred in 
the current financial year. All Bid Committee members have been taken to a comprehensive Bid Committees course to gain more 
knowledge on technical aspects of Preferential Procurement Regulations.

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000

29. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
Opening balance – 1 July – 5
Expenditure incurred during the year 4 46
Expenditure condoned during the year – (51)

4 –

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred in the current financial year relates to interest charged by the supplier for late payment 
of the account. The delay occurred as a result of technical challenges experienced during the implementation of the SAP system.

30. RISK MANAGEMENT 
Capital risk management

Magalies Water’s objective for managing capital is to enhance shareholder value and generate sufficient surplus to meet the required 
capital expenditure programme, thus sustaining future development of the entity and its ability to continue as a going concern. This 
objective has remained consistent with prior years.

The entity’s retained income at 30 June 2016 is R1 243 719 (2015: R1 192 742).

There have been no changes to what the entity manages as capital and the strategy for capital maintenance from the previous year.

Financial risk management

The principal financial risks to which Magalies Water is exposed as a result of its financial instruments are: liquidity risk, credit risk 
and market risk (interest rate risk).

The entity ’s overall risk management strategy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential 
adverse effects on the entity’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by the entity’s investment advisors under 
policies approved by the Board. The investment policy provides guide for overall risk management, as well as investment of excess 
liquidity.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will encounter difficulties in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities. 
Magalies Water’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that the entity will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabilities when they fall due.

Magalies Water monitors its risk to shortage of funds using projected cash flows from operations and has provision for cash buffer 
investment. The entity also manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and the entity has borrowing limits approved by the National Treasury.

The table below reflects Magalies Water’s maximum exposure to liquidity risk, which equals the carrying value of trade and other 
payables at reporting date:

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000

Trade and other payables
Current 258 398 234 568

Interest rate risk

As the entity has no interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes 
in market interest rates. Magalies Water is exposed to interest rate as a result of investments held with various financial institutions. 
The entity has variable interest rate facilities which are reset on changes in prime interest rate, and therefore exposed to cash flow 
interest rate risk.

A sensitivity analysis to a change in interest rate has been performed based on the exposure to interest rates on investments at 
reporting date. A 1% increase or decrease has been used and represent management’s assessment of the reasonable possible 
change in interest rates. The sensitivity analysis has been performed on the same basis as the previous year.
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30.  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the entity to interest rate changes by 1%.

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000

1% decrease
Decrease in financial assets (1 809) (594)
Decrease in comprehensive income (1 809) (594)

(3 618) (1 188)

1% increase
Increase in financial assets 2 763 1 586
Increase in comprehensive income 2 763 1 586

5 526 3 172

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash 
with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counterparty.

Magalies Water minimises loss by default of customers through implementation of policies and procedures relating to debt collection. 
All known risks are disclosed to the Board. Interest is charged at prime rate on debt over 30 days from the date of invoice. The Board 
does not expect any of the counterparties to fail to meet their obligations, hence no investment has been impaired during the 
current and prior year.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

2016 
R’000

2015 
R’000

Financial instruments
Loans and receivables 110 220 193 650
Trade and other receivables 231 088 336 315
Cash and cash equivalents 36 412 17 130

377 720 547 095

31.  GOING CONCERN
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

32.  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Magalies Water is expecting transfer of assets from the mines in terms of the off take agreement signed by the mining ventures and 
the entity. In terms of the agreement, the ownership and risk of the Works shall only vest in Magalies Water after the completion, 
successful commissioning and proper handover by the mines.

As at 30 June 2016, the handover of the assets has not yet taken place. The total cost incurred by the mines for the construction of 
the assets has not yet been reconciled and finalised.

These assets have therefore not been accounted for in the annual financial statements.
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